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Federal Summary

City of Moses Lake
Grant County
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009

The results of our audit of the City of Moses Lake are summarized below in accordance with
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An undualified opinion was issued on the financia! statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

« Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

+ Material Weaknesses: We identified no significant deficiencies that we consider to be
matarial weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
City. |

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal Control Over Major Programs:

« Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of

internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

* Material Weaknesses: We identified no significant deficiencies that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

We issued an unqualified opinion on the City's compliance with requirements applicable to its
major federal program.

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed under OMB Circular A-133.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Identification of Major Programs:
The following was a major program during the period under audit:

CFDA No. Program Title

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed
by OMB Circular A-133, was $300,000.

The City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

City of Moses Lake
Grant County
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009

City Council
City of Moses Lake
Moses Lake, Washington

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Moses
Lake, Grant County, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated June 3, 2010.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted' in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financiai reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider
to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance ‘with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The resulis of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of managemeént, the City Council, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record
and its distribution is not limited. [t also serves to disseminate information to the public as a
reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations. :

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

June 3, 2010

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
with Requirements Applicable to its Major
Program and Internal Control over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

City of Moses Lake
Grant County
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009

City Council
City of Moses Lake
Moses Lake, Washington

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the City of Moses Lake, Grant County, Washington, with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program
for the year ended December 31, 2009. The City's major. federal program is identified in the
Federal Summary. Compliance with the requirements of [aws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the City’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2009.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal
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control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an_opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opsnlon on the effect[veness of the
City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliarice exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be materlal
weaknesses, as defined above. :

This report is intended for the information of management, the City Council, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reportmg
tool to help citizens assess government operations. :

BRIAN SONNTAG, CG#M
STATE AUDITOR

June 3, 2010

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial
Statements

City of Moses Lake
Grant County
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009

City Council
City of Moses Lake
Moses Lake, Washington

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Moses Lake, Grant County, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31,
2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed on page 9.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Moses Lake, as of
December 31, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and
Street/Street Repair and Reconstruction funds, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and -
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that festing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal contro! over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages page 10 through 22, information on
post-retirement benefits other than pensions on page 70 an_d infrastructure modified approach

Washington State Auditor's Office
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on pages 71 through 72 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM
STATE AUDITOR

June 3, 2010

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Financial Section

City of Moses Lake
Grant County
January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009
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BASICFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Assets — 2009

Statement of Activities — 2009

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds — 2009

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-wide
Statement of Net Assets — 2009

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental
Funds — 2009 '

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities — 2009

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual — General Fund — 2009

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual — Street/Street Repair and Reconstruction Fund — 2008

Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds — 20098 _

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Proprietary
Funds — 2009

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds — 2009

Statement of Net Assets — Fiduciary Funds — 2009

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets — Fiduciary Funds — 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements — 2009.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Pension Funds — Schedule of Funding Progress for the LEOFF 1 Retiree Healthplan —
2009

Condition Assessments and Preservation of Infrastructure Eligible for Modified Approach
— 2009

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2009
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Moses Lake, we offer readers of the City of Moses Lake’s financial
statement this narrative.overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Moses Lake
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. The information presented here should be read in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, the
financial statements and notes to the financial statements. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated,
are expressed in thousands of dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The assets of the City of Moses Lake exceeded its liabilities af the close of the miost recent
fiscal year by $122,063 (net assets). Of this amount, $12,793 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and credltors

. The government’s total net assets increased by $7,164.

. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the-City of Moses Lake’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $2,821, a slight decrease from the prior year.
Almost the entire amount, $2,327, is avaﬂable for spending at the government’s discretion
(unreserved fund balance).

. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was still
in a deficit position of $140 from an unanticipated reduction in revenue due to a down
economy coupled with an increase mpayroll from labor negotiations. The deficit should be
eliminated in 2010 as the economy in the area is slowly refurning to normal.

=

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEN[ENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended fo serve as an introduction to the City of Moses Lake’s
basic financial statements. The City of Moses Leke’s basic financial statements are comprised of
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. :

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview ofthe City of Moses Lake’s finances, in a manner smfnlar
to a private-sector business. '

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Moses Lake’s assets and
ligbilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City
of Moses Lake is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise fo the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues

Washington State Auditor's Office
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and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial staterments distinguish functions of the City of Moses Lake
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other fanctions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Moses
Lake include peneral government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic
development, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Moses Lake
inchude a water and sewer utility, sanitation, storm water, ambulance ard airport.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping ofrelated accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Moses
Lake, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Moses Lake can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds, Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on neat-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near term
financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Moses Lake maintains fifteen individual governmental funds. The City’s two major
governmental funds as determined by GASB criteria are the general fund and the street repair and
reconstruction fund. For reporting purposes the city has elected to present the street fund as a major
fund and has chosen to combine the street and street repair & reconstruction fimd in one separate
column along with the general fund in the governmental funds balance sheet, and the governmental
funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. Data from the remaining
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The City of Moses Lake adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fand. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate corepliance with this
budget.

Washington State Auditor's Office
. 11



Proprietary funds. The City of Moses Lake maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented:as business-type actjvities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Moses Lake uses enterprise funds to account for
its water and-sewer utility, sanitation, storm water, ambulance, and airport operations. Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City of Moses Lake’s various functions. The City of Moses Lake also uses internal systems to
account for its fleet of vehicles, self insurance, unemployment programs, building services, and
computer services. Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-
type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. : :

Proprietary funds provide the same type ofinformation as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
water and sewer utility, sanitation, storm water, ambulance and airport as all are considered to be
major funds of the City of Moses Lake. Conversely, the internal service funds ate combined into a
single, aggregated presentation in the pioprietary funds financial statements. Individial fund data
for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combmmg statements elsewhere in this
report, ‘ -

The storm water fund was added it 2009 as a result of the City being included in the Phase IT Storm
Water category by the Department of Ecology. Because the City discharges a portion of their storm
- ‘water into the lake we are mandated to clean our catch basins and sweep our streets- more often as
well as prepare reports, add treatment systems if necessary and require a new storm water:
construction permit on certain projects. Due to the added cost the city will be instituting a new utility
fee in 2010 to cover the added payroll and operatmg costs associated with the new reqmrements

Fldm:lary funds Flduclary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government, Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds arenotavailable to support the City of Moses Lake’s
own programs, The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much ]Jke that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes prov1de addmonal mformatmn that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial statements.

Other information. : - -
Required Supplemental Information. In add1t10n to the basm ﬁnanmal statements and the
accompanying notes this report also presents certain required supplementary information concemning
infrastructure assets reported using the modlﬁ ed approach and pensmn plan ﬁmdmg

The requlred supplementary information immediately follows the notes to the ﬁnanmal statements
in the Basic Statements section of this report.

Combining Statements, The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds and internal service funds are presented in a separate section immediately
following the required supplemental information,

Washington State Auditor’s Office
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Assets
“As noted earfier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Moses Lake, assets exceeded liabilities by $122,063 at December
31, 2009. :

City of Moses Lake's Net Assets

Govertimental Business-iype
Achivities Aclivities Total
2008 2008 20049 2008 2008 2008

Cutrant and other assets $4,761 §5,563 $13.910 §12718 $18,671 $18,27%
Capital assets 64,008 60,621 58,506 A6,621 133,514 127,242

Total assets 88,758 66,184 23 416 79,337 162,185 145521
Long-term lahilifizs 10,518 10,504 15,748 16624 26,267 27,128
Other lahilities 2,256 2,028 1,600 1,465 3,856 3,454

Total liahilifies 12,774 12,534 17,348 18,083 o122 30,627
Net assels:
Invested in capital asseats,
net of related debt 54407 50,482 3,586 439,930 108,082 100,413
Restricted 333 386 B854 852 1,187 1,248
Unrestricted 1,165 2,771 11,628 10,433 12,793 13,238

Total netassels $£50856 §$53,650 §66,068 §51.248 $122063 $1148098

The largest portion of the City of Moses Lake’s net assets (88.5 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets {e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Moses Lake uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending, Although the
City of Moses Lake’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Moses Lake’s net assets (1.0 percent) represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
net assets ($12,793) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
credifors,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Moses Lake is able to report positive balancesinall -
three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities, The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. The
City’s financial position for the year has slowed but is expected to improve.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

The changes in net assets fable indicates the increases or decreases in net assets of the city resulting
from its operations. The City’s total net assets increased by $7,163 in 2009. The increase after
transfers was split among governmental (3$2,349) and business-type activities ($4,814). -

The following is a sumumarized version of the city’s changes in net assets. The table shows the

revenues, expenses, and related changes in net assets in table form for the governmental activities
autonornous from the business-type activitieg for 2009.

City of Mases Lake Changes in Net Assets

Govemmental . *  Businessiype
Aclivitios Activities Toial
. 2609 2008 2009 2008 2009 . 2008
Revenues: '
Program revenue: o
Chargas fot sevices 56231 36,655 12573  §iz@lv $18,804 $18,272
Operating grants and
. contrlbutions o237 170 - - 237 . 470
Capital granis and ‘ ‘
contrihutiohs 2,702 1,884 3,482 2,428 B,184 - 4,312
General ravenus
Property iaxes 4321 3,271 - - 4,321 3,271
Bales taxes £6G33 5,226 - - + 5633 6226
buihess taxes 3,491 3,571 - - 3491 357
Othertaxes - - - - - - C-
Other B 271 20 24 330 208 540
Tolal revenues - 22888 21,987 15,069 15,374 38,945 37,382
Expenses:
Genersl government 1,485 1,559 - - 1,484 1,559
Public safely N 8,083 7.040 . - - 8,083 7.040
Public works ‘ 1,895 1,851 . . - 1,895 1,851
Transporiation 2,718 2,618 - - 2,718 2,618
Culfure & racreation 491f - 4883 - - - 4911 ' 4663
Econamic environment 768 797 . - - 768 797
Interest on long-term debt 533 588 - < : 533 "~ 588
Waterlsawer ulilily . - - 7,129 7,040 Fi129 . 7040
Sanilgtion - - 2,025 21866 2,025 2,166
Ambulante - - 2125 1.960 2125 1,860
Almart - - 100 159 100 158
Total e¥penses : 20,403 19117 11,379 - 11,325 - 31,782 30,442
Increase in net assets ' o ‘ : .
hefore fransters 2,483 2870 4, 680 4 150 7,163 - B820
Transfers {134} 233 134 {23 - -
Increase in net assets _ 2,349 3,103 4814 3817 ¥163 6,820
Netassets 01101 83,650 50,548 61,249 A7 470 114,800 - 107,718
Prior period adjustment - - - - 261 - 261
thange it reserves - - .- - C. -
Metassets 1231 _ $55899 . 53851 $66.063  §57,248 $1220862  $114,839

" Washington State Auditor's Office
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Moses Lake’s net assets
by $2,349. As shown in the Statement of Activities $9,169 of the total cost was paid for by either
those directly benefitting from the programs or by governments and organizations that subsidized
certain programs through grants and coniributions. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

. The largest revenue increase of $1,050 was in property taxes, coming mostly from the
completion of a major manufacturing facility that increased the city tax roll by $675.

. Sales tax revenue decreased ($592) for the year was a result of a sharp decline in commercial
and residential construction in and around the City and down turn in the economy.

. The decline in transportation revenue ($505) was attributable to the decline of permits (8138)
issned and $104 cost reimbursements as a direct correlation to the decline in construction.

, The large increase in public safety expense ($1,044) is attributable to an increase in monthly

charges for camera enforcement equipment, increase in medical insurance and payroll, and
additions of new equipment. The $351 increase in culture expenses is mostly due to the
increase in personnel and refated cost due to the expansion of the water park facility.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activites
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Business-type activities, Total net assets of Business-type activities increased by $4,814 for the
year, Other than Ambulance when revenues decrease fof a activity so did the related expenses and
when revenues increased so did expenses. Key elements of the fluctuations are as follows.

. Increase ($394) in charges for services in water/sewer can be linked completely to increased
usage. There was no annual increase in rates for 2009 as is mandated by municipal code as
there was no increase in the Consumer Price Index. The remainder of the increase in utilities
can be linked to development charges.

. The decrease in Sanitation revenue is from a reduction in additional fees for added pick up

‘ due to citizens taking advantage of the free spring clean up program. A decrease in expenses
of $141 is split between a reduction in dumping fees and lower fuel surcharge.

. - Ofthe $297 decrease in ambulance revenue, $188 can be attributed to a reduction in mileage
revenue charged with the remainder being a reduction in services provided. A $165 increase
in expenses is due entirely to payroll and related benefits.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-lype Activities
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B expenses B revenue

12,000,200

10,000,000
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Revenue by Source - Business type Activities
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| FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Moses Lake uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Moses Lake’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Suchinformation
is useful in assessing the City of Moses Lake’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Moses Lake’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $2,821, a decrease of $152 in comparison with the prior year.
Almost the entire amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending af the
government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase
orders of the prior period ($146), for debt service payments ($323) and a variety of other restricted
purposes {325).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Moses Lake. At the end of the current

- fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was in a deficit of $140 while the total find
balance was at a deficit $22. The street/street reconstruction funds conversely had avnreserved fund
balance of $921 and a total balance of $974.

The fund balance of the City of Moses Lake’s General Fund increased by $272 during the current
fiscal year at the same time the street/street reconstruction funds increased $27. Key factors in the
changes are as follows:

. The street/street reconstruction funds received stimulus money from ARRA in the amount
of $1,182 which supported the increase in capital projects and related costs of $1197.

. The increase in property taxes ($1,709) and electric utility taxes ($108) offset the decline of
sales tax ($569) and utility tax from telephone ($57) and natural gas (321).

. As the cconomy slowed and futiure revenues were questionable major construction was
suspended for the year leaving capital purchases down significantty (§377).

. With the benefit of the increase in property tax revenue the City was able to retain all

personnel which amounted to a marked increase in payroll and related benefits in public
safety ($207). The largest increase occurred in recreation as new equipment rates and new
facility rent jumped $64 and $119 respectively. 2009 was the first year also that Parks
absorbed the full cost of directly related expenditures that were previously aliocated. The
major expenditure being utilities ($179). Public safety also had a significant increase in

equipment rent ($111).
. The economic recession caused a substantial reduction in building fees and permits ($540).
. An increase in fines ($396) was due to the addition of two traffic cameras in school zones.
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Proprietary funds. The City of Moses Lake’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in mere detail. The proprietary
funds are those funds that account for government operations where the intent is for the costs to be
paid primarily by user charges. Enterpzise funds are those that provide services predominantly to
external users and the internal service funds provide service principally to other governmental units
or within the City. The funds consist of five enterprise funds, and five internal service funds.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Utility at the end of the year amounted to $8,751, and
those for the Sanitation Uiility amounted to $3,718. The total 6f the two funds accounted for 98%
of the total net assets for all enterprise funds. Other factors concerning the finances of these two
fonds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Moses Lake’s busmess—type
activities.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

- Original compared to final budget -
The final revenue budget for the General Fund was only $91 (.5%) higher than the original budget,
The street/street reconstruction funds final revenue budget was $1,200 higher (93%) and the

éxpenditure budget was $1,558 higher (22%) than the original. This was the result of budget
amendments approved by City council during the year. The major budget changes are listed below.

. The $91 increase in tax revenue in the general fund was a mixture of increases in electricity
© {$100) and telephone ($56) utility tax and a decrease in property taxes ($65).
e ‘Increase in the street/strest reconstruction funds tevenue was from the receipt of ARRA grant

funding ($1,200) and expenditures was due to $137 in projected labor costs, $700 in
transportation and $497 in capital costs, all due to added street projects because of the grant,

* . TheStreet/street Reconstruction Funds also experienced d reduction in building rent expense
($68) that was offset by a jump ($99) in the equipment rental cost due to incredsed rental
rates. There had been no rate increase for the previous two years.

Actual résults compared to final budget

General fund revenues and expenditures came in under the final amended budget by $336 (2%) and
$ 535 (3%) respectively. Street/streetreconstruction funds had the same results with revenue of §131
{6%) and expenditures of $829 (17%) both under budget. Factors contributing to this outcome were:

. Due to the recessed economy, building perinit ($412) and investment interest ($253)
revenues in the General Fund were down, as was refail tax (3303) and plan fees (3106).
However, utility tax from phone usage ($127), admissions ($121) and nontraffic mfracnons
(3308) were all higher than budgeted for the year.

. The City received higher revenue from state entitlement ($66) and concessions ($30) in the
general fund.
’ Payroll and related benefits account for relatively the entire amount of actual expenditures

over budget for public safety ($352) and public works ($144) in the general fund.
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. The street/street reconstruction funds received $115 more fuel tax revenue from the state than
was expected which helped offset the reduced revenue ($79) from permits and REET ($188).

. The majority of the expenditure variance in the street/street reconstruction funds came from
less than anticipated charge for supplies and minor equipment {$63) and Jower than expected
capital cost (§743) due to lower competitive bids on a major street project.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements,
machinery and equipment, park facilities, aquatic facilities, and streets . The total increase in the
City of Moses Lake’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 4.9% (a 5.6%

increase for governmental activities and a 4.3% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

. A pew well was compieted with 2 total project cost of $605 and a pump costing $50 was
replaced at an existing well.

. A new force main with a total cost of $215 was finished and placed into service.

. A new ambulance at a cost of $159 and numerous vehicles totaling $194 were purchased
during the year..

. The sewer lining project was completed at a cost of $539.

. Construction in Progress increase significantly due to a uncompleted street project costing

$1,561 and $1,361 for utilities for a new City Civic Center at the end of the year.
Additional information on the capital assets of the City of Moses Lake can be found in note 6 .

City of Moses Lake's Capital Assels
(net of depreciation)

actual ameunts

Government Business-type
- Activities Acthdlies Total
Land and land nprovements $4.485,742 $1,080,814 $5 866 555
Buildings 17,974 B2 25941 B55 - 43,916,507
Machinery and egulpment 2,838,738 1,374,123 4 272,866
tnfrastructure 35,218,640 40,826,803 - 76,045 443
Constructian i progress 3430493 282,857 3,713,048
Total assets 464,008,264 $69 506,157 $133 514,421

Infrastructure. The City of Moses Lake has elected to use the modified approach as defined by
- GASB statement 34 for reporting it’s streets, alleys, bike paths, parking lots and bridges. The city
has made a commitment to preserve and maintain the street infrastructure at an acceptable condition
rather than recording depreciation. The rating scales for paved streets and bridges are further
explained in the required supplementary information, which follows the notes to the basic financial
statemenis.
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The City’s engineering department evaluates the condition that paved streets are kept based on a
formula established by a street assessment program, The formula is calculated using 8 different
criteria applied to all paved streets from one intersection to another, Among the criteria is depths and
lengths of cracks, sags and humps, and patching, From the inputting of the information the system
evaluates all criteria and produces a rating. The condition assessment is taken at least once every
three years, The City has no set policy as to the level the streefs are to be maintained. However, the
City has a program where the streets have a crack seal process applied every six years to bring the
condition of the street substantially up.

By definition the City has one bridge that it maintains. The porfion that is under water, is inspected
every five years by the state Department of Transportation and documented in an inspection report
given to and maintained by the City. The bridge is given a sufficiency rating, which is a numerical
rating based on a 100 point scale. The rating is based on it’s structural adequacy and safety, load
capacity, essentiality for public use, and its serviceability and functional obsolescence. Currently the
one bridge carries a sufficiency rating of between 65 and 70. The city inspects and evaluates the
remainder of the bridge above the water line using the pavement management system that is used
for rating paved streets. The bridge has no load limits which substantiates it’s superior rating.
Projected costs to maintain the bridge are included in the budgeted cost of the streets.

The City maintains an inventory of these infrastiucture assets. With triennial assessments
establishing the condition level of the assets, the City makes annual estimates of the cost to maintain:
it’s streets which are also reported in the City’s anhual Capital Improvement Program. For 2009 the
City projected $700 for road maintenance. The actual amount expended was $778. '

For the year there were no significant changes in the condition levels of the streets. With relatively
mild weather patterns the condition level of the streets was maintained above the acceptable
conditions for the City.

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the City of Moses Lake had total bonded debt
outstanding of $16,035. Of this amount, $9,085 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit
of the government and $6,950 represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e.,
reveniie bonds).. ' '

City of Moses Lake’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Debt
{Actual Amounis}

Governmental Business-type
Activities Aclivities Total
General obligation debti : $ 8,160,999 $ 915,000 .§ 9,084,009
Revenue debt ' - 6,950,000 _ 6,550,000
$ 8160009 $7.865.000 3 16,034,989

The City of Moses Lake’s total long-term debt decreased by $855 (5%) during the currentfiscal year,
The decrease was due to payoff of annual obligation payments and no new debt.
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The City of Moses Lake maintains a “AAA” rating from Standard & Poor’s by carrying Bond
insurance. The Revenue Bonds are rated “A+" and the G.Q. Bonds are rated “A-",

Washington State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental enfity may
issue to 7.5% of its total assessed valuation, subject to a 60% majority vote of qualified electors. Of
the 7.5% limit, 2.5% is for general purposes, 2.5% for open space/park facilities and 2.5% for
utilities. Non-voted (limited tax) general obligation indebtedness is limited to 1.5% of assessed
valuation, The combination of unlimited tax and Hmited tax general obligation debt for all purposes
cannot exceed 7.5% of assessed valuation. The City’s assessed valuation for 2009 was $2,809,290
and the remaining debt capacity is as follows:

{Actual amounts)

General - $ 58,102,761
Open Space/Park Facilities 70,232,256
Utilitics 70,232,256
Total $198,567.273

Additional information on the City of Moses Lake’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9 of the
notes to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND THE NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

After dealing with a sluggish local economy for several years subsequent to the September 11, 2001
terrorist attacks, the city finally realized in mid-2005 some moderate growth in the economy. While
this growth was sustained and advanced throngh 2007 and remains positive, the rate of growth began
to slow in 2008, slowed further in 2009, and will remain restrained through 2010, The restricted
growth in the local economy is due primarily due to the state of the nation’s economy.

Growth generally translates into greater revenues attributable in part to increased sales faxes,
property taxes, permit fees, and the like. The City finds itself in a sormewhat unique and fortunate
situation. While the effect of the national “great recession”, as it has been termed, is felt by the City
inreduced sales taxes and permitting fees, the real property taxes from industrial growth has covered
the loss of those reduced sales tax receipts and even caused am overall increase in general
sovernment revenues. When the national economy grows again, the City anticipates sales taxes and
permitting fees will rebound which will be extremely advantageous for the City.

With continued but restrained growth of the local economy, which is providing governmental
revenue, at a previously unrealized rate, the City can anticipate providing services at the level now
provided and perhaps increase those services in some areas, However, caution will be necessary
because of the uncertain effects of the national economies. The aforementioned factors were
considered in the preparation of the City’s 2010 budget.

In reviewing the building activity in the local economy currently in progress and anticipated for the
future, it is anticipated that the local economy will continue to improve in 2010 and perhaps for
several years in the future, but at a much slower rate, which supports the assumption that current
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service levels can be maintained and increased with caution. While some sectors have slowed, the
City of Moses Lake continues to expetience some building activity, contrary to the sifuation in many
parts of the state and country.

Several industrial concerns in and around the City have anpounced, begun, or completed new
projeets or expansions. These expansions, additions, and new projects will result in added building
activity, a short term influx of constriiction employment, and in the long term, add industrial jobs
to the City’s employment base. The expansion and/or new location of industry in and around the
City will have a direct effect on the local economy and have an effect on building activity which will
affect the City’s property tax receipts. Eventually the added employment will result in additional
population in and around the City which will affect retail sales and, therefore, the City’s retail sales
tax receipts.

Property tax increases have been limited by voter approved initiatives. However, gross property tax
receipts have increased because of annexations and new construction within the City. The City
anticipates continued additional building activity in 2010. The building activity eventually will
translate into a hi gher assessed valuation in the City which will generate additional prop erty taxes
up and above the statutory limitation on existing property taxation,

During the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance in the General Fund decreased. Monies
in the fund balance were used to complete several construction projects in the City, thercfore the
decrease, Some monies also were ised to assistin fundmg for operatlons or ordinary expenses. This
occurred because of a drop in revenues and a desire to keep services at current levels, Itis expected
that the fund balances will be retained through 2010 and increased. Except for a small allowed
propeﬂy tax 1nc1 case, no other tax increases were mcluded in pleparmg the 2010 budget ‘

Whileit is expected that future budgets may be Hmited by voter approved initiatives and legisiation,
which can reduce income fo the City’s General or Operating Fund, it is expected that some of the-
limitations experienced by the City will be tempered by continued economic development, primarily
in the retail, industrial, and tourism sectors. All of the zeferenced factors were considered in
preparing the City of Moses Lake’s budget for the 2010 ﬂscal year.

The water and sewer utility rates were increased slightly, by the rate of inflation, for the 2010 budget
year. These rate increases in 2010 assist in prov1d1ng service at current levels.

The pr: o_}ected outlook for the City of Moses Lake and surrounding area remains positive as more
building permits are issued and more larger industrial firms are moving into the area or expandmg
current facﬂ.lues because of relatively inexpensive land and powen costs

Regquests for Information :
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Moses Lake’s finances
for all those with an interest in the governments finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional finamcial information should be
addressed to the Finance Director, 321 S. Balsam, PO Box 1579, Moses Lake, WA 98837.
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CITY OF MIOSES LAKE
Statement of Nat Asseis
December 31, 2009

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
internal balanices
inventories and prepaid items
Deferred charges
Restricted assets:
Cash
Interest and other receivables
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land and land improvements
Buildings and other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress

" Total assets

- LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Accrued interest
Unearned revenuss
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bue within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investad in capital assets, net of retated debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assels

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 6,319,085 $ 4845238 $ 11,265,323
949,054 1,405,623 2,354,717
{2,767,589) 2,767,588 0
212,211 441,559 553,769
49,404 109,225 158,629

0 4,233,057 4,233,057

2,666 2,356 5,022
4,485,742 1,080,814 5,566,555
17,974,652 25,941,855 43,916,507
2,898,738 1,374,129 4272866
35,218,640 40,326,803 76,045,443
3,430,493 282,557 3,713,048
68,773,135 83,411,803 152,184,938
787,857 448,747 1,234,805
132,003 151,591 283,594

5,008 1,253 6,261
1,331,048 1,000,125 2,331,173
10,517,873 15,748,539 26,266,572
12,773,890 17,348,316 30,122,206
54,496,535 53,585,563 108,082,498

0 853,538 853,538

333,407 0 333,407
1,168,803 11,624,386 12,793,289
$ 559099245 § 66063487 § 1220862732

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

December 31, 2009
Street § Street Other Tofal
Repair & Recon- Governmental Governmental
General struction Funds Funds Fuands
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,479,171 $ 534 419 3 1,885,427 $ 3,989,017
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles): :
Taxes 315,314 0 Y 315314
Assessments 0 0 50,288 50,288
Customer acccunts 40,989 18,153 t 59,142
Unbilted services 15,178 8,101 ¢ 24,279
Other receivables 33,285 547 o 33,812
Due from other governmenis 9,333 425988 11,087 446,408
Prepaids : 74,373 53,223 0 127,596
Total assets 1,967,623 1,141,432 1,946,802 5,055,856
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: ,
Accounts payable 164,036 151,039 25473 340,548
Salaries and benefits payable 269,504 15,576 1,840 317,010
Revenues collected in advance 4,653 0 355 5,008
Interfund loans payable 1,162,844 0 0 1,162,844
Deferred revenue 358,833 547 50,288 409,668
Total lizbilities 1,989,960 167,162 77,956 2,235,078
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Debt service 0 0 323473 323,473
Petty cash and prepaid expenses 92,498 53,223 0 145,721
Vacation/sick leave payouts 25,000 g 0 25,000
Unreserved, reported i
General fund (139,835) ¢ B (139,835)
- §pecial revenue funds - 0 921,046 1,278,079 2,198,125
Capital projects funds 0 0 267,293 267,293
Total fund bafances {22,337 974,269 1,868,846 2,820,778
Totat liabilities and fund balances $ 1,667,623 3% 1141432 % 1,046,802 § 5,055,856

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to
The Government-wide Statement of Net Assets

Decembaer 31, 2009

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 2820778
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the government-wide statament of net assets are different becauss:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reperted in the funds {exclusive of internal service funds' capital assets). 56,242,403

Other long-term asssets are not available to be collected in current period revenuss and therefore .
are deferred In the funds. 409,668

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cosls of certain activities, such as
insurance, information services, fleet management, and building maintenance, io individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of these internal service funds are iincluded in governmental
gclivities on the government-wide statement of net assets.

Internal Service funds’ net assels 3,381,832

Internal payable-charges under cost o business-type activilies - pricr years 1,160,885

Internal receivable-charges over cost to business-type activities - current years (68, 022) )

Net adjustment {o arrive at net assels - governmental activities, " 4,476,504

Liabilities, including bonds, loans, and compensated absences, not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the governmental fund balance sheets, but are reported
on the government-wide statement of net assets (exclusive of internal service funds' debt).

Bonds payable (5,663,663)
Issuance discount 38,578
Capital leases payable {33,009) .
Accrued interest payable {86,054)
Compensated absences _ (1,488,195) -
Other postemployment benefits ‘ : (738,147)
Net adjustment to arrive at net assets - governmental activities {7,981,580)

Bond premiums, discounts, refundings and issurance costs are reporied as other financing
sources and uses and expendiitures in the governmentalfund financial statements but

capitelized on the government-wide statement of net assets. 28,808
Interest receivables of governmental activities not reported in the funds. ‘ 2,666
Nat assets of governmental activities $ 55,009,245

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

" For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Street [ Street Other Total
Repair & Recon- Governmental Governmental
General struction Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 12,220,901 $ 620,373 $ 538,408 $ 13,377,682
Licanses and permits 586,273 30,875 0 617,149
Intergovernmental revenues ’ 405,685 1,708,359 254,258 2,369,302
Charges for services 3,341,522 2,326 148,118 3,480,883
Fines and forfeits . 564,429 o ) 664,429
Interest earnings 261,897 a 6,850 268,747
Rents and royalties 430,158 0 0 430,168
Contributions/deonafions 0 ¢ 64,311 64,311
Assessments 0 6,562 25,144 31,708
Miscellaneous 62,550 200 3,468 71,218
Total revenues 17,973,418 2,369,806 1,041,554 21,384,666
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemment ' 1,480,639 o 500 1,481,138
Public safaty 7,009,769 0 256,895 7.266,663
Public warks 1,827,639 0 58,810 1,886,449
Transportation 0 2,707 478 {500) 2,708,978
Econonic envirenment 777,163 o G 777,163
Culture and recreaifon ‘ 4,168,020 0 238,600 4,407,620
Capital outlay 96,040 1,652,918 266,970 1,915,825
Debt service: '
Principal . 0 c 564,350 564,350
Interest and dsbt issue costs ) 82170 3,698 255,504 341,573
Total expenditures 15,441,440 4,264 292 1,642,128 21,347 860
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 2531978 {1,884,596) {600,574) 36,806
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .
Transfers in 530,387 2,200,000 859,271 3,589,658
Transfers (out) (2,808,245) (278,60G} {710,387} (3,797,232}
Capital lease 18,354 0 0 18,354
Total other financing sources {uses) {2,253,504) 1,921,4C0 148,885 {189.220)
Net change in fund balances 272471 26,804 (451,689) (152,414)
Fund balances-beginning (294,809) 947 466 2,320,535 2,973,192
Fund balances-ending . 3 (22,337} & 874,269 3 1,668,846 g 2,820,778

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

In Fund Balances of Govermental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds:

$ {152,414)

Amounts rep'orted for governmental ‘z"ac';tivities tn the goverﬁmérit—wide statement of acfivities are different because:

Governmentai funds report capital outlays as expanditures. However in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated aver their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceaded

depreciation in the current period.

Capital oullay

Deapreciation expense

Net increase in net assets - governmental activities

Revenues in the statement of activities that do nof provide current financial resources are
- niot reported as revenues in the fund statment,

The net effect of various miscellaneous fransactions involving capité[ assets (i.e. sales,

disposals, and denations) is to increase net assets.

Contributed assets
Gain{loss).on salefdisposals of assets . .

Net increase in net assefs - governmental activities

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources {o governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on net assets. Also govermental funds repoit the éffect of issutanice costs, premiums,
discounts, and simitar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of

these differences In the treatment of long-term debt and related items,

Lease/Bond proceeds repoﬁed as debt
Debt principal payments

Net increase in net assets - governmental activilies

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures In governmental

funds.

Other post employment benefits
Accrued debt interest
Compensated absences _
Amortization of deferred bond cosis

Net decrease in net assets - governmental activities

Accrued interest revenue in the statement of activities does not provide current financial

resources and is not reported as revenue in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment,
insurance, data processing, and fleet management to individual funds, The netf revenue
of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Internal service funds change in net assefs

L oss (gain) from charges to business-type activities
Net increase in net assets - governmental activities

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.

1,915,025

(713,660) '
1,202,265

5,047

1,368,445

5,883) .
) 1,362,502

{18,354)
564,350
545,996

(739,147)
8,438
(28,698)

{4,084
) S {763,488)

410

214,724
{66,022)

148,701

3 2,348,109
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services

Fines and forfeits

Interest earnings

Rents and royalties
Miscellanecus

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Pubiic safety
Public works
Transportation
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debi service:
Interest and debt issue costs
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
Transfers in
Transfers {out)
Proceeds from capital lease
Total other financing sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 12,432,000 $ 12,523,000 $ 12,220,601 $ (302,099)
§58,500 958,500 586,273 (372,227}
242,000 242,000 405,885 163,685
3,350,400 3,350,400 3,341,622 (8,878)
354,000 354,000 664,429 310,428
520,000 526,000 261,897 (258,103}
356,600 356,800 430,158 73,558
5,200 5,200 62,550 57,350
18,218,700 18,309,700 17,973,418 (336,284)
1,432,100 1,432,100 1,480,839 (48,539}
7,399,500 7,399,500 7,008,769 389,731
2,005,800 2,005,800 1,827,639 178,161
32,000 32,000 0 32,000
835,800 835,800 777,163 58,637
4,151,900 4,124,200 4,168,020 (43,820)
50,000 50,000 96,040 (46,040)
95,800 96,800 82,170 14,630
16,003,905 15,976,200 15,441,440 £34,760
2,214,800 2,333,500 2,531,978 198,476
532,000 532,000 530,387 (1,613)
(3,046,100} (3,156,700} (2,808,245) 348,455
0 0 18,354 18,354
(2,514,108} (2,624,700) (2,259 504) 365,198
{299,300} (291,200} 272,471 583,671
1,525,000 1,731,800 (294,809} {2,026,809)
5 1,225 700 § 1440800 3 {22,337} $ (1.462,937)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Acfual
Street / Street Repair and Reconstruction Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Assessments
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Currerit,
Transportation
Capital oullay
Debt service:
" Interest & debt issue costs’
" Total expendifures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
TFransfers (ouf)

Total other financing sources (Uses)

Net change In fund balances

Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Budgeted Amounts
Qriginal Final Actual
$ 782,800 $ 782,800 $ 820,373
116,000 110,000 30,875
380,000 1,580,000 1,709,359
26,000 26,000 2,326 .
0 0 6,562
2,600 2,000 200
1,300,600 2,500,600 2,369,606
1,657,500 2,715,100 2,707 478
1,875,000 2,372,800 1,662,916
3,400 5,600 3,808
. 3,535,800 _ 5,093,500 4,264,292
(2,235,300 (2,592,800 {1,894,598)
2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000
{278,600) (278,600) (278,800)
1,921,400 1,921,400 1,821,400
{313,800) (671,500 26,804
620,400 1,030,200 947 466
$ 306,500 $ 358,700 $ 974,269

The nofes to the financial statements are an intégrai part of this statement,

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
{Negative)

§ (162,227
(79,125)
129,359
(23,674)

6,562

- {1,800)

(130,904)

7,822
819,884

1,702
820,208

_ 688,304

oo

698,304

: (82,734)

$ 615569
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE . PageTof2

Statement of Net Assels
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2003
Governmentat
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activitles
Water/ Storm Internal
Sewer Sanitation Ambufance Airport Water Totals Service Funds
ASSETS
Cument assets: . .
Cash and ¢ash eguivalents $ 4,075284 $ 738756 $ 73381 § 358,827 0 $ 4,946,238 $ 2,320,068
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles) 852,875 218,345 304,728 29878 0 1,405,623 250
Interfund foans receivable 1,000,000 2,862,461 0 0 ¢ 3,862,461 0
Intergovemmental receivable 0 o 0 o 0 0 19,801
Inventories and prepaid expenses 384,467 39,363 7,739 ¢] 0 441,559 84,616
Total current assets 5322508 3,855,915 385,858 28,501 10,655,881 2,424,534
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assels:
Revenue bond reservasi/debd service:
Cash and cash equivalents 876,196 [+ 0 0 0 878,196 i
Inferest receivable 2,358 0 D [e] 0 2,356 0
Construction in progress: .
Cash and cash eguivalents 3,358,880 0 ¢ 0 2 3,356,860
Total restricted assels 4,235,412 0 Q 0 0 4,235,412 o
; Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
' land and [and rights 758,047 Q 0 460 36,180 795,687 508,951
Buidings 25,902,657 -0 0 39,198 o 25,841,855 3,245,045
Infrastructure 40,389,401 0 4] 75,440 361,983 40,826,803 0
i Machinery and equipment 1,261,799 G 112,330 Q 0 1,374,128 2,520,153
' Construction in progress 258,346 2] 24,211 0 1] 282,557 1,390,712
Intangible assels 285,127 1 Q 2 g9 285,127 4]
Total capital assels ) _ 68,856,376 o 136,641 115,007 388,143 89,608,157 7,765,961
Qther nonturrent asssis:
Defered charges 109,225 Q 0 c O 109,225 20,598
Total non current assets 73,201,014 Qa 138,541 115,087 388,143 73,850,794 7,786,458
Total assets $ 785236819 § 3858915 $ 5323588 § 203599 & 398143 % 84,506675 $ 10,210,853

The notes to the financial stataments are an integral part of this statement.
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* GITY OF MOSES LAKE

Page 2 of 2
Statement of Not Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2009
Governmentat
Business-fype Activities-Enterprise Funds Activitles
Water/ . ‘ ] Storm Internal
Sewer Sanktdtion Ambufance  Alrport Water Totals Service Funds
LIABILITIES
Cutrent liabilities: . )
Accounts payable § 190802 & 138,010 S 11,200 3 735 0o 3 33636 § 104,687
Salarles payable 85469 2,180 43817 0 0 101,516 25612
Interfund loans payable ' 0 0 0 o i} Q 2,899,617
Revenues collected in advance 0 0 1,253 Q 0 1,253 0
Interast payable ] o 4} i} o} [} 35,950
Capital leases payable 13,061 V] 26,835 0 0 39,985 488,949
G. O. bonds payable 38,332 ] 4] 0 1] 38,333 248,849
Compensafed absences 31,934 g2 16,613 0 a 48,868 8,104
Accrued inferest 151,681 [+] 0 0 1] 151,591 0
Inlergovernmental loan payable 756,038 0 0 0 0 798,038 0
Revenue bonds payable 75,000 0 1] 0 1] 75,000 0
Other short-term fiabilities 6,505 1] 0 0 0 8,595 0
Tolal current liabilittes 1,360,704 138,460 99,817 735 0 1,699.717 3,611,767
Nencurent liabilities:
Revenue bonds payabie(net discountpremium} 7,222,148 s} o o 0 7,222,148 0
G.0. bonds payable(net discount/premium) 888,951 0 0 0 ¢ 868,951 2,238,755
Intergovernmental [oans payable 7,131,053 ] 0 ] o 7,134,053 0
Compensated absences 287 408 2,686 149,515 1] V] 439,810 72,934
L.éase payable 30,105 M) 56,531 1] 0 85,637 ~ 905905
Total noncurrent liabilties 15,530,668 2,886 206,047 ] [¢] 15,748,599 3,217,594
Tolal liabilities 16,800,371 141,346 305,864 735 0 17,348,316 6,829 361
NET ASSETS ‘ - *
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 53.019.145 0 63175 115,087 398,143 53,585,563 3,883,797
Restrcled for debt service B53,538 M) 0 o M) 853,538 Q
Unrestricted 8,750,563 3,717,569 163,360 87,767 6 12,719,259 502,165
Total net assels $ 62623049 $ 37175686 § 216,535 3 202,854 3985143 67,168,359 $ 3,381,632
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund aclivities related to enterprise funds, . __(1,094872)

Net assets of business-type activities

3 66!063!487
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Fund Net Assets
Propriefary Funds

For Year Ended December 31, 2009

Governmental
Business-type Actlvitles-Enterprise Funds Activities
Water/ Stormn Internal
Sewer Sanktation Ambulance Alrport Water Totals Service Funds
CPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 8208644 § 1837803 S 1701276 & 9 3% 0 5 11747723 3 3,520,468
Intergovemmental revenues 0 0 o] g Q o 3,510
Miscellaneous revenues 126,082 45 Z,610 31.044 g 159,751 o]
Tetal eperating revenues 5,334,726 1,837,843 1,703,988 31,044 3] 11,207,504 3,523,978
OPERATING EXPENSES } ‘
Salaries and benefits 1,881,183 77,073 1,650,182 g Q 3,608,448 856,326
Supplies and contractural services 2,410,080 1,850,939 473,330 12,518 0 4,345 848 882,983
Utilities 357,791 2] il 65,249 [} 423,040 135,373
Repairs and maintenance 92,403 o] 6,997 10,607 o} 110,007 157,855
Insurance claims and expenses 0 jal o i} 9] S 559,228
Depreciation and amortization 1,950,426 o 11,233 12,045 o 1,973,704 819,377
Total operating expenses 6,691,863 2,028,012 2,144,752 100,417 o] 10,862,045 3,241,143
Operating income {{0ss) 1,642,863 {120,164) (437,866} {69,374 o 845459 282,815
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
invesiment eamings 24,032 0 0 bs} o 24,032 1,490
Insurance recoveries 123,984 0 c o 0 123,994 Q
Intergovernmental payments (50,000} 0 o [+} a (50,000) 0
Interest experise {429,536) o 13,372 o 0 (432,608} {195,839)
Miscellaneous revenuss 445,579 109,040 0 o] Q 854,619 0
Miscellaneous expenses o] o 0 0 o3 i} 437
Gain (loss) on disposat of assets o o {12,813) 0 0 {12,813) {15,933}
Total nonoperaling revenues (expensss) 114.068 108,040 {16,185) 0 Q 206,923 (209,844}
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 1,755,931 81,124) {454,051} (69,374) o 1,152,363 72,891
Capital contributions 3,064,119 ) o o) 0 398,143 3,462,287 141,732
Transfers in Q +] 73500 60,574 1] 134,074 4
Change in net assels : 4,821,049 {81,124 {380,551} {8,800} 358,943 4748717 214,724
Total net assets - beginning £7,802,199 3,788,683 597,086 211,664 o] 3,166,208
Total net asseis - ending M $ 3717568 3 216535 § 202864 § 388143 3,381,832
Adjustment fo reflect the consolidation of intemnal service fund activities refated to enterprise funds. 66,022
Change In net assets of business-lype activities 48514740

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE Page 1of 2
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
Governmantal
Buslness-type Actlvitles-Enterprise Funds Activitles
Water/ : ' B Starm Internal Service
. . Sewer Sanitation Ambulance Almport . Water Totals Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : . j B
Recelpts from customers 4% 8,268,521 $ 1,878,969 § 1,777,082 § 30589 $ 0 § 14,953,122 3 3.623,978
Payments 10 supgilers (2,357,8585) (1,842,321} (478,372) (88,774) 0 (4,867,322) | {1.807,838).
© Paymenis {o employees {1,834,931) {76,933} {1.504,121) 0 0 (3,616,045) (875,868)
Miscellansous revenues 434,119 109,131 . 1,635 0 ] 544,885 . 187
Miscellanacus expenses {409,386) Q 0 ¢ 0 {408.386) ) [i]
Net cash provided by (used for) ] ] B
eperating activitles 4,098,468 {31,214 (303,798} {58,205) o] 3,705,254 840,460
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments from {{0) other funds 0 {345,415) 0 0 0 (349,415) 0
Transfers from (to) oiher funds Q 4] 73,500 60,574 0 134,074 0
Insurance recoveries 123,994 0 0 0 0 123,994 .a
Other intergovemmenial payments (41,200 1] 0 0 o {41,200) -0
Recelpt of grant funds a a 0 0 0 g {19.601)
Net cash used for noncapltal ] ) ] .
financing activities 82,784 {348,415} 13.500 80,574 o {132 548) {19,601)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANGING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from capital debt 37,181 o a 0 0 37,181 1,857,184
Principal pald on debt (916,609) 1} (25,924) [} 0 (942,533) {653,169)
Interast paid on debt (426,799) ] {3,372) 0 0 {430,171). (194,672}
Cagltal confribidions 577,817 ] 0 0 398,143 975,960 118732
Purchases of capital assels {1.866,676) 0 {24,211} 0 (398,143) (2,289,029) (1,439,877}
Procseds of capital grants 0 4] 874) 0 ¢ (874) 0
Proceeds from sale of capilal assels 39,244 .0 1.761 o] 1] 41,005 7.210:
Nef cashy provided hy {used) for capital . -
and relaled financing activities (2,555,842) [+] (52,619} 4] 0 (2,608,460) {608,671}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Inlerest income 0 0 0 4] o] 4] 1,490
Net cash provided by invesling aclivities 1] 1] 0 Q Q ] L 480
et [ncrease {decrease) incash and .
cash equivalents 1,625,420 (380,620) (282,914) 2,968 0 964,246 315,778
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 6,682,801 1,119,385 356,312 56,458 Q 3.21'5,056' _ 2,004,280
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 $ 8308321 S 73756 0§ 73,397 $ 0 $ 91793 " & 2,320,068

The noles to the financlat stalements are an integral part of this statement.

§ 58827
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE Page 2 of 2
Statement of Cash Flows :

Prapristary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Governmental
Business-fype Actlvities-Enterprise Funds Activilles
Yates/ Starm Tnternal Service
Sewar Sanitation Ambuiance Alrport Water Totals Funds

Reconclilation of Operating Income {Less) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Actlvites - :
QOperating income (Joss) $ 1,642,663 $ (190,164 $ (437.866) $ (69.374) $ 0 $ 945458 5 282,835
Adhestments fo reconeite operating Income
to net cash provided by operaling activilies:

Depreciation 1,950,426 o 11,233 12,0458 4] 1,973,704 818,377
Allowance for uncolisclible accounts Q o} 10,441 g [s} 10,441 -
Decrease (increase} in accounts receivable 57373 41,166 64,364 {475) 0 162,428 ¢
Decrease {increase) In taxes receivable Q 1] 0 o] 0 g 15,427y
Decrease {increase) in lnveniory ' {12,010} 17,162 {3,724) 0 Q 1,427 0
Decrezse {increase) in prepaid sxpenses o} 0 0 o} 4] 0 (10,572}
{Decrease) increase In accounts payable 105,023 {8,543) 6,679 (402) Q 101,757 (25,628)
{Decrease) increase in salaries payable 46,252 79 46,071 [+ 4 $2.403 6,039
: {Decrease} increase in deferred revenue c ¢ 0 ¢ o} 0 {28,163)
: (Dacrease) increase In noiscellaneous revenues 308,541 109,088 Q o v 417,627
Total adjustments 2,455 605 158,950 134,064 11,169 0 2,758,788 557,625
Net cash pravided (used} by operating activilles $ 4,008,468 § (31214 § [(303802) $ (58205 § 0§ 3705248 S 840,460
| Moncast: investing, capiial, and finanting
activities: -
Contributions of capital assels $ 2,623,702 o ¢ 4} $ 388143 § 3,021,845 Q
Addition o capitel leases ' 4 0§ 3nise Q $ 37,180 $ 815,205

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE
Statement of Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2009

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Escrow accounts

Total assets

LIABILITIES
~ Custodial accounts payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits

and other purposes

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Firefnen's
Pension
Trust Fund

$

193,245

Agency
Funds .

193,245

508,792

13,173
522,065

$

193,245

522,965
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2009

ADDITIONS
Intergovernmental revenues
Interest earnings

Transfers in

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefils
Medical insurance and direct medical payments

Total deductions
Change in net asseis

Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

Firemen's
Pension
Trust Fund

$

23,871
3,914
73,500

101,284

20,800
131,423

162,223

-50,938

244,183

193,245

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Daecember 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Moses Lake have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are
described below.

A,

Reporting Entity

The City of Moses Lake was incorporated on September 19, 1938 and operates under the
laws of the State of Washington applicable to a non charter code city with a Council/manager
form of government. The reporting entity comprises the primary government, component
units and other orgamzat:ons that are included to ensure that the financial statements are not
mlsleadmg The primary government of the City consists of all funds, departments, boards,
and agencies that are not legally separate from the City.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which. the City is financially
accountable. The City is financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a
voting majority of the-organization's governing board and (1) the City is able fo significantly .
influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organizations; or {2) the City
is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the City is legally
obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide
financial support fo, the organization; or the City is obligated for the debt of the organization.
Component units also may include organizations that are fiscally dependenton the Cityin that -
the City approves the budget, levies their taxes or issues their debt.

Based upon these criteria, the primary government consists solely of the legal entity of the
City.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements {i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of acfivities) report information on all of the non fiduciary activities of the primary
government. Governmental activities, which normally are supporied by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Our policy is not to allocate indirect
costs to a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements or a particular function or segment. Taxes
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and other items not properly included among program revenues are reporied instead as
general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Maijor individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Stetement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resource’s
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as is the proprietary fund and the
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resource’s
measurement focus and the mcdified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabifities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. The City considers
property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after the year ends.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated within the current period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recagnized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the portion of special assessment receivable due within the current fiscal period
is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the city.

The City of Moses Lake reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the city's operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Street Fund is a special revenue fund that accounis for the operation and
maintenance of the City’s streets and alleys, street lighting, and traffic control. Revenues
are derived mostly from tax coniributions and state shared gasoline tax.

The City of Moses Lake reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water/Sewer Fund accounis for the activities of the City’s utility. Revenues are
received from water and sewer services provided to the general public. Expenses
comprise maintenance and extensions of drainage, water and sewer service facilities,
operating a water supply system, maintaining sewer treatment plants and operating a
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water drainage system., This fund also reflects the operation of revenue bonds
outstanding, the funds available for redemption of bonds, cumulative reserve and
construction funds.

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the activities of providing contracted garbage services
to its citizens. The fund is self-supporting through-user charges.

The Ambulance Fund accounts for the activities of emergency services and
transportation of patients.

The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of a municipal a;rport
located within the city |IITlItS

The Storm Water Fund accounts for all activities of the storm water system in order to
controf flooding and protect surface and ground water,

Additionally, the City of Moses Léke reporis the following funds types:

Special Revenue Funds account for revenue from specific taxes or other earmarked
revenue sources that by law are designed to finance partlcular functlons or activities of
the city.

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources used for the constructior and
acquisition of major capital faciiltles other than those financed by special assessments
or propnetary funds.

Debt Service Funds fmance and account for the payment of interest and principal on all
tax-supported debt, serial and term, including those payable from special assessments.

Internal Service Funds account for information sérvice, equipment rental, building
maintenance, self-insurance, and unemployment compensation provided to other
departments or agenmes of the city or to 6ther cmes on a cost reimbtrsement basis.

Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Fireman’s Pension fund, which
accumulates resources for pension benef:t payments and post employment healih care
benefits to qualified firefighters.

Agency Funds are custodlaE in nature, representing assets held by the City in a trustee
or agency capacity for the Sate of Washington, Grant County and others. These funds
do not involve the measurement of the results of operations, only assets and liabilities.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting, issued prior to Decémber 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements 1o the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option
of following subsequent private-secior guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject o this same limitation. The city bas elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance. ' '
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As ageneral rule the effect of the Interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceplions to this general rule are charges between the
government's water and sewer functions and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concernad.

Amounts reporied as program revenues inciude (1) charges to customers, (2) operating
grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, inciuding special
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than
program revenues. General revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing service, producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal on going operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Water/Sewer Enterprise fund, or the non major enterprise
funds, and of the City’s internal service funds are customer charges for sales and services.

Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenuses and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city's policy
to use unresiricted resources first, then restricted resources as needed.

Budgetary Information

Scepe of Budget

Budgets serve as control mechanisms in the operations of governmental units. Legal
budgetary (expenditure) control for the City is at the fund level; i.e., expenditures may not
exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. However, budget and actual
information is kept by department, account, and object.

Annuat appropriated budgets are adopted for the general and certain special revenue
funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Grant related special revenue funds
and capital project funds adopt budgeis on an individual project basis and for the fiscal
periods that reiate to the life of the project. The budget is based on generally accepted
accounting principals (GAAP). There is ne difference between budget basis and GAAP.
Any unexpended appropriation balances lapse at the end of the fiscal year {except for
capital outlays, which are carried forward from year to year until fully expended or the
purpose of the appropriation has been accomplished or abandoned). Proprietary and
fiduciary funds are budgeted for management purposes only. National Council on
Governmental Accounting Statement No. 1 does notrequire, and the financial statements
do not present, budgetary comparisons for proprietary or fiduciary fund types.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as a reservation of fund
balances and does not constitute expenditures of liabilities because the commitments will
be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.
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Amending the Budget

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund: however, any revisions that alter the total expendltures of afunc[ must be
approved by the City Council.

When the Council determines that it is in the best interest of the City to increase or
decrease the appropriation for a partzcular fund, it may do so by ordinance approved by
one more than the majority.

The budget amounts shown in the fmanclal statements are the final authorized amounts
as revised during the year, o

- The financial statements contain the original and final budget information. The original
budget is the first complete appropridted budget. The final budget is the original budget
adjusted by all reserves, transfers, allocations, supplemental appropr:atlons and other
legally authorized changes applfcable for the fiscal year.

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

It is the city’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2009, the
treasurer was holding $13,465,796 in short-term residual investments of surplus cash.
This amount is classified on the balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents in various
funds. The interest on these investmenis is prorated fo the various funds that are
statutorily to receive interest and the balance of the interest is credited fo the General
Fund according to the RCW and pursuant to city ordinances.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the city considers all highly liquid
investments {including restricted assets) with a maturity of four months or less, when
purchased, o be cash equivalents. :

Reteivables "

Taxes receivable consist of property taxes and related interest and penaities {See
Property Taxes Note No. 5). Accrued interest receivable ¢consists of amounts earned on
investments, notes and contracts at the end of the year.

Special assessments are recorded when levied. Special assessments receivable consist
of current and delinquent assessments and related interest and penalties. Deferred
assessments on-the fund financial statements consist of unbilled special assessments
that are liens against the property benefitted. As of December 31, 2009, there were no
special assessment's receivables delinquents.

Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals or

organizations for goods and services including amounts owed for which billings have not
- been preparéd.. Notes and conirdcts receivable consist of amounts owed on open

account from private individuals or organizations for goods and servicés rendered.
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Amounts Due to and From Other Funds and Governmental Units, Interfund Loans and
Advances Receivable

Activities betweesn funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred io as either "Inferfund loans
receivable/payable” or “advances toffrom cther funds.” All other outsfanding balances
between funds are reported as “due io/ffrom other funds.” Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-fype activities are reported
in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” A separate schedule
of Interfund Joans receivable and payable is furnished in Note No. 13, Interfund Balances
and Transfers.

Inventories

Inventories in governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption.
The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are
purchased. The reserve for inventory is equal to the ending amount of inventory to
indicate that a portion of the fund balance is not available for future expenditures. A
comparison fo market value is not considered necessary.

Inventories in proprietary funds are valued by the FIFO method which approximates the
markef value.

Restricted Assets and Liabilities

These accounts contain resources for construction and debt service, including current
and delinquent special assessments receivable, in enterprise funds. The current portion
of related Hability is shown as Payables from Resiricted Assels. Specific debt service
reserve requiremenis are described in Notes No, 9 & 10, Long-Term Debt and Leases.

The restricted assets of the anterprise funds are composed of the following:

"Cash Invesiments - Debt Service 3 876,196
Cash Invesiments - Construction 3,356,860
Interest receivable : 2,356

$
Total Resiricted Assets 4.235.412

Capital Assets - See Capital Assets and Depreciation Note No. 6

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the city as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and
an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or construcied. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donatien.

Costs for additions or improvements to capital asseis are capitalized when they increase
the effectiveness or efficiency of the asset. The costs for normal maintenance and repairs
are not capitalized.
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Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projecis are
construcied. Interest incurred during the construction phase of the capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. The fotal interest expense incurred by the city dunng the current fiscal year
is $956,210. ' ' oo

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, aé. well as any component
units, are depreciated using the straighi-line method over the. followmg estlmated useful
life: ‘ :
Assets _ Years

Bua!dmgsl!m provement's 5-80
Other improvemenis 5-25
Vehicles’ §-15
Machinery & Equipment §-20
Utility Infrastructure ‘ 20-50
Streets, Paths, Tralls ' N/A
Traffic Signals ' ' 40
Runway's & Taxiways C 4220

Infrastructure capital assets, valued at-§$50,000 or greater; are long-lived capital assets
that are normally stationary in nature and can be preserved for a significantly greater
number of years than most capital assets. included in the Clty's infrastructure are the
sfreets and bridges network. The Cily has elected to use the modified approach as
defined in GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting for bridges, paved strests,
bike paths, and alleys. There is no depreciation expense reported for such assets nor are
amounts capitalized in connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of the assets
unless the improvements also increase the service. potential.

Cdm pensated Absences

Coni;ﬁensated absences are absences for which employses will be pald, such as vacation
and sick leave. All vacation and sick pay is accrued at year end in the government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements.

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to two years of earned annual leave, is
payable upon separation of employment for any reason. Sick leave may be accumulated
up to 480 hours for payoff of exempt employees, and is payable upon voluntary
termination or a reduction in work force in accordance with the following schedule:

Years of Service Percent Payable

o-4 10

6-9 : 25
1019 50
20-29 75
30+ 100

For members of the General Union bargaining unit who were city employees and
members of the Public Employees Retirement System as of January 1, 1983 and who
refire, 50% of accumulated sick leave (to a maximurm of 480 hours) will be paid as
severance pay. '
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QOther Accrued Liabilities

These accounis consist of accrued wages and accrued employee benefits.

Peferred Revenues

This account includes amounts recognized as receivables but not revenues in
governmental funds because the revenue recognition criterion has not been met. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the varicus components of deferred revenue and unearned
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavaitable Unearned

Delinquent properiy {axes receivable $ 315314 § -
Revenues not applied - 44,065
Special assessments not yet due 50,288 .-
3 365,603 $ 44,065

Fund Reserves and Designations

in the fund financial statements, governmenial funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricied by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject io change.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanaticn of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the
Governmeni-Wide Statement of Net Agsets

The governmental funds' balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets.

Explanation of Ceriain Differences Between the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Governmeni-Wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of activities.

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

As of December 31, 2008, the General Fund had a deficit fund balance of $22,337. This is a result
of a larger than anticipated reduction in revenue coupled with an increase in payroll from labor
negotiations. The anticipated recovery of the economy should e[i_minate the deficit in 2010.
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Budgetary Compliance Information

The City's annual budget process is similar each year. The calendar below outlines the
general time frame followed to prepare, review and adopt the annuai budget

July- A request by the Finance Director to ail Department Directors Io prepare detalled
estimates of revenues and expenditures for the next fiscal year {calendar year).
(RCW?35A.33.030 requires this by the second Monday in September.)

August- The estimates are to be filed with the Finance Director. (RCW 35A.33.030 requires
this by the fourth Monday in September.}

September- The estimates are presented to the City Manager for modifications, revisions or
additions. The Finance Director submits to the City Manager a proposed Preliminary Budget
setting forth a complete financial program showing expend[tures requested by each
department and sources of revenue by which each such program is proposed to be financed.
(RCW 35A.33.050 requires this by the first of October.)

The City Manager provides the legislative body with currént information on estimates of
revenues from all sources as proposed in the budget for the current year. He also provides
the legislative body with the proposed Preliminary Budget setting forth the complete financial
program, showing expenditures requested by each department and sources of revenue by
which each program is proposed to be financed. (RCW 35A.33.135 no later than the first
Monday in October.)

October- The legislative. body must hold a public hearing on revenue sources for the comlngj

‘year's budget, including consideration of possible increases in properly tax revenues. RCW
84.55.120. After the hearing, a city may choose to pass an ordinance at the same mesting
authorizing a property tax increase in terms of dollars and percent to comply with State
statutes.

The City Manager prepares prelimiriary budget, budgef message, and files it with the
legislative body and Finance Director.( RCW 35.33.055 & 35A.33.052. Af Jeast 60 days
before ensu:ng fiscal year) ‘

November- The Fmance Director pubhshes notice of f[llng of Preliminary Budget and.
publishes notice of public hearing on the final budget once a waek for two consecutive weeks.
(RCW 35.33.0618& 35A.33.050, no later than the first two weeksin November.)

Setting property tax iev:es {RCW 84, 53 070, November 30 for all Cltles and towns )

The legisiative body must schedule hearings on the budget or parts of the budget and may
require the presence of Department Directors. (RCW 35.33. 057 & 35A.33.055, prior to the
final hearing.)

Copies of Proposed Budget is made available to the public, (RCW 35A.33. 055 & 35A.33.052,
no later than six weeks before January 1 )

Final hearing on Proposed Budget. (RCW 35.33.071 & 35A.33.070, on or before first Mondéy
of December.}

Washington State Auditor's Office
45



Adopticn of the budget. (RCW 35.33.075 & 35A.33.075, following the public hearing and prior
to the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year.}

Copies of final budget are transmitted to the State Auditor’s Office and to Municipal Research
and Services Center.

NOTE 4 - DEPCSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The City of Moses Lake's deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal
depository insurance (FDIC) or by collaterat held in a multiple financial institution collateral
_ pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC).

Investments

As required by state taw, all investments of the City of Moses Lake’s funds {except as noted
below) are obligations of the U. S. Government, U. S. agency issues, obligations of the state
of Washington, general obligations of Washington State municipalities, the State Treasurer's
Investment Pool {LGIP), Grant County Investment Pool (GCIP), bankers’ acceptances, or
certificates of deposit with Washington State banks and savings and loan institutions.
Regulatory oversight is performed by the CFO, the Treasurer, the Treasury Accountant. As
prescribed by RCW 43.09.050, the state auditor will “audit the accounts” and “inspect the
books” of the State Treasurer to determine the compliance of investment activities with state
statues. Also in accordance with RCW 43.250.080, the State Treasurer will submit an annual
summary of LGIP activity to the governor, the state auditor, and the Joint Legislative Audit
and Review Commitiee. Investments of pension trust funds are not subject to the preceding
fimitations. All temporary investments are stated at cost. Other property and investments are
shown on the statement of net assets at historical cost. (Other property consists of real estate
held for future use). The fair value of the cities investment in the LGIP and the GCIP is the
same as the value of the pool shares.

At December 31, 2009, the bank balance was $ 2,859,534, Of the bank balance $100,000
was covered by Federal Depositary Insurance that are insured, registered or held by the City
orit’s agent in the City's name. The remainder of the bank balance was covered by the State
of Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission which includes uninsured and
unregistered investments which are held by the counter party’s trust department or agent in

the City's name.
Weighted
Average
Investment Type Fair Value Rating Maturily
(days}
Grant County Invesi Pool $ 6,227,628 not rated 14
WA State Invest Pool 7,235,170 not rated 16
Total Fair Value $ 13462796
Porifolio Weighied Average Maturity 15
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interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interesi rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. In accordance with it's investment
policy, the City manages it's exposure to decreases in fair values by limiting the weighted average
maturity of its investment portfolic to less than. 8 months.

Credit Risk: Safely of principle is the foremost objective of the City. Investments shall be
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Washington State Investment Pool, a 2a-7 fund, managed by the State Treasurer's
Office is limited to high quality obligations with limited maximum and average maturities which is
to minimize both market and credit risk. The pool is unrated. The City's investment in general
obligation bonds were rated AAA by Standards and Poor’s. The same rating agency has upgraded
the City’s Revenue Bonds to "A+" affirming a stable outlook.

Under the City's investment policy, all temporary cash surpluses are invested. The City's investment
policy is mare canservative to limit risk, investing the portfolio in treasury notes and bills, certificates
of deposit with qualified public depositories, and bankers accepiances with a credit rating for A1
or P1 by nationally recognized rating organizations. The City's investments are in compliance with
all state investment laws and City investment pohcles - : :

Concentration of credit risk: Concentration risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnitude of the
City's investment in a single issuer. The City's policy states, with the exception of US Treasury
securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the portfolio can be invested in a single
security type or institution. ‘ ‘

Custodia! credit risk - investments: Custodial risk is the risk the city will-not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities in the possession of and outside party, in the event
of the failure of the counter party. The City has no custodial risk based on GASB 40 guidelines.
NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

The county treasurer acts as an agent to co!lect property taxes levied in the county for all iaxlng
authorltles _ . _ :

_ _ Property. Tax Calendar
January 1 .Taxes are levied and hecome an enforceable lien against propert:es
February 14  Tax bills are mailed . :
April 3¢ First of two equal instaliment payments is due
May 31 Assessed value of properly established for next year's levy at 100 % of markef value

" October 31 Second installment is due

In governmental funds, property taxes are recorded as a receivable when levied, offset by a
deferred revenue. During the year, property tax revenues are recognized when cashis collected.
Atyear-end, property tax revenues are recognized for collections expected to occur within 60 days.
No allowance for uncoll ectlble taxes i is established because delinquent taxes are consndered fully
collectible.

The city may levy up to $3.6 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services,
subject o two limitations:
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1. Washington State law in RCW 84.55.010 limits the growth of regular property taxes to one
percent (1%) per year, unless approved by the voters. The levy shall be set so the regular
property taxes payabie in the following year shall not exceed the limit factor multiplied by
the amount of regular property taxes lawfully levied in the highest of the three most recent
years in which such taxes were levied plus an additional dollar amcunt calculated by
mulfiplying the increase in assessed value from new construction, improvements to
property, and increases in the assessed value of state-assessed property by the regular
property tax rate of the preceding year.

2. The Washington State Constitution limits the total regular property taxes to one percent
(1%) of assessed valuation or $10 per $1,000 of value. I the taxes of all districts exceed
this amount, each is proporiionately reduced until the {otal is af or below the one percent
{1%) limit.

The city’s reguiar levy for 2009 was $2.91975 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of
$1,773,747,198 for a total regular levy of $5,196,417.

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital Assets
A summary of capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balanse [noreasas De¢reas as Balance

G avernm ental A clivities
CapilalAssets NoiD epreciated;
Land E 4485742 % - - § 4485742
Infras tructure™ 23122 264 1 372,072 - 24,494,336
CP 7RI 71 3.504,658 861,836 2,430,483
Tofal capital assels not
Prepraciatad 38395777 4876728 564,836 42,418,670
CapitalAszatk Depreciated: :
Buildings 25,808 832 111280 26 821,113
Intang-Software 147 bo4 - - 147,051
Machinery and equipmant 9,201 3885 B23,173 135,402 8B889,157
Infras freecture 1,448 808 - - 1,448,808
Tetal 356808877 7244563 135,402 37,205,829
Leszs Accum ulaied D eprecigtion:
Buildinps FA183.252 763,208 7 246,454
Intang-sottware 147 051 - . 147,051
ttachinery and Equipm ant 5363213 8335612 106,408 8,790,418
Inftas trueture 688,088 35,2486 . 724,304
Tofai Accumulated D apreciation 14,381,604 1333037 106,408 15 608,236
Total Capital Assels Baing
Deprmciated, Nat 22225 272 (6508.583) 28,9886 241,587,693
Governmantal Activities Capital
Assets, Nat $ 60821048 §F 4278148 § 830,932 J__§4008,264

* The tity accounis for the offy shreels, alleys, parking lols , kozt rampsdandings, hikedonging patﬁé, bridges and shorm
drains using fe modified approach and repatis hhem as non-depreciable Infrastruchire. Under the modified approach,
rather than recerding depreciafion, asset condiion is reported The cily includes inferral service und assels as part ot

governmental folals above,
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Beginning Ending
Balange Inprease Dagreases Balanes

Business-type Activilies '
Capital Assels NotD epreciated:
Land $ 1044834 % - B - § 1,080,814
cIp 199,316 4433 894 4350654 282,857
T otal gapital assels not
Depraciated 1,243,850 4,433 854 4350654 1,363,370
CapialAsszels Depreclated:
Buitdings 33,3682.480 1762 - 33364242
Machineryand equipment’ 1990863 61,146 78,557 1,882,282
Infrastroeture ' 55822787 4.7 30402 - 80,281 808
Tolal an.g684.0661 4,793 310 78,557 845,638,132
Less Actum ulated D epraciation:
Buitding= 8,705,444 - 748943 - 7 422,387
Machinary and Equipmant 598208 72238 63983 608,163
Inftastructurs 18,503,220 1,483923 . 18,464,805
Total Accum ulated D epraciation 25,607 962 1873,704 53,8983 27 495 346
Total Capital Assets being - e I e
Pepreciated, Met 85,376,999 ‘2818608 1457 4 68,142,787 -
Businesstype Actlvities Capital o
Assels, Met ¥ 38.32&948 ¥ 7.2535600. % 4365228 % 89566 .157

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as foilows:

Governmental Activities

Depreciation

General Government 38,396
Public Safety 22,316
Transportation 37,781
Public Works 2,985
Culture and Recreation _ 612,181
Gapital Assets Held by the Governmant's Infernal Service '

Funds are Charged fo the Various Functions Based on

Their Usage of the Assels 820,123
Total Depreciation - Governmental Activities 1,233,782

Business-Type Activilies

" Depreciation

Water/Sewer 1,950,425
Ambulance 11.233
Airport 12,045
Totat Depreciation - Business-Type Activities 1,873,703
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Collections Not Capitalized

The city has a collection of Indian ariifacts that have been acquired over the vears, the
“Adam East Collection.” This collection is held af the Moses Lake Museum and Art Cenier
and is determined fo be exempt from capitalization. This collection meets all the exemption
requiremenis as follows:

1. The collection is held for public exhibition, education or research in furtherance of public
service rather than financial gain.

2. The collection is protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved.

3. The collection is subject to Moses Lake Museum & Art Center Collection Policy section
Vi:D which requires the proceeds from sales of collection items be used to acquire other
items for the collection.

Construction Commitmenis

The city has active construction projects as of December 31, 2009. They are a weil pump
house project and road improvement projects. Road N improvement project will be financed
with a grant from the Transportation Improvement Board. At year-end the government's
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Total Coniract Spentto Rémaining
Project Amount Awarded Date Commitment
Well #3 Pump house % 261,942 % 31,161 $ '230,781
Road N . 996,000 56,024 939,976
2008 Lakeshore/Peninsula
Reconstruction 1,209,557 1,141,364 68,192
Total $ 2467489 3% 1,228549 % 1,238,850

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS

Substantially all City of Moses Lake full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one
of the following statewide refirement systems administered by the Washington State Department
of Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefitand
defined contribution retirement plans. The Depariment of Retirement Systems (DRS), a
department within the primary government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report {(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to:

Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit
P. 0. Box 48380
Olympia, WA 98504-8380

The following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Government Employers and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, an Amendment of
GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27.
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Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3

Plan Description

PERS is a cos.t‘-'sharing multiple-employer ratirement system comprised of 'th_r:ee separate
plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a
defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.

Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees; employees of the
Supremes; Appeals, and Superior courts (other than judges currently in a judicial retirement

. system); employees of legislative committees; community and technical colleges, college and
university employees not participating in national higher education retirement programs;
judges of district and municipal courts; and employees of local governments.

PERS participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan 1. members.
Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977 and by either, February 28, 2002 for state and
higher education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local government employees, are Plan
-2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3. PERS
participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and. higher education
employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the |rrevocable
option of choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be
exercised within 90 days of employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is
made, Employees who fail to choose within 80 days default fo PERS Plan 3. Notwithstanding,
PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may opt out of plan membership if termlnaliy i, with less
than five years-to live.

PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment
earnings and employer and employee contributions. PERS retirement benefit provisions are
established in state statute and may be amended only by the State Legislature,

Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 1
menmibers are eligible for retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at age 60 with five:
years of service, or at age 55 with 25 years of service. The annual benefitis 2 percent of the
average final compensation per year of service, capped at 60 percent. (The average final
compensation is based on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible consecutive
compensatlon months.) Plan 1 retirements from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may.
receive actuanal]y reduced benefits. The benefit is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice.
of a survivor option. A cost-of living allowance (COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years
of service times the COLA amount, increased by three percent annually. Plan 1 members may
alsc elect to receive an optional COLA amount that provides an automatic annual adjustment
based on the Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at three percent annually. To
offset the cost of this annual adjustmenti, the benefit is reduced.

Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2
members may retire at age 65 with five years of service with an allowance of two percent of
the AFC per vear of service. {The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any
ehg:ble consecutive 60-month period.) Plan 2 members who retire prior to the age. of 65
receive reduced benefits. If retirement is af age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service,

a three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction will apply. The,
benefit is also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap
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on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted, (based on the Consumer
Price Index), capped at three percent annually. ‘

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined beneiit
component, and member contributions finance a defined contribution component. The
defined benefit portion provides a benefit calculated at 1 percent of the average final
compensation per year of service. (The average final compensation is based on the greatest
compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.} Effective June 7, 2006, Plan
3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service;
or after five years if twelve months of that service are earned after age 44; or after five service
credit years earned in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 members are immediately
vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. Vested Plan 3 members are eligible-
to retire with fulf benefits at age 65, or at age 55 with 10 years of service. Plan 3 members
who retire prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older
with at least 30 years of service, a 3 percent per year reduction appiies; otherwise an actuarial
reduction will apply. The benefit is also actuariaily reduced fo reflect the choice of a survivor
option. There is no cap on years of service credit; and Plan 3 provides the same cost-of-living
allowance as Plan 2.

The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with an option selected by
the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant o other options authorized by the Employee
Retirement Benefits Board.

There are 1,192 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the
following as of the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2008:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benesfits 73,122
Terminaied Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 27,267
Active Plan Members Vested 105,212
Active Plan Members Non-vested 58,458
Total 262,057

Funding Policy

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates,
Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates.

Employee contribution rates for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state
agencies and local government unit employees, and 7.5 percent for state government elected
officers. The employer and employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer
contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan
2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are required to confribute at the
level established by the legisiature. Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions finance the
defined benefit portion of the plan, and member contributions finance the defined contribution
portion. The Employee Retirement Benefits Board sets Plan 3 employee contribution rates.

Six rate options are available ranging from 5 to 15 percent; two of the options are graduated
rates dependent on the employee’s age. As a result of the implementation of the Judicial
Benefit Muttiplier {JBM) Program in January 2007, a second tier of employer and employee
rates was developed to fund, along with investment earnings, the increased refirement
benefits of those justices and judges that participate in the program. The meihcds used to
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determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance
with Chapter 41.40 and 41.45 RCW,

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current year covered payroll as
of December 31, 2009, were:

Members nof participating in JBM: :

PERS Plan 1 'PERS Plan 2 . PERS Plan3 -

Employer* 5.31%" 5.31%** 5.31%*
En‘iPlOyee _ 8.00%**** 3.000, %> iy

~ The employsr rales Include the employer administrative expense feée currenily set at 0.16%
** The employer rate for stété elected officials is 7.89% for Plan 1 and 5.31% for Plans 2 and 3.
. "*Plan 3 defined benefit portion enly.
****Ths employee rate for state elecled officials Is 7. 50% for Plan 1 and 3.90% for Plan 2.
kkksx Vanab1e from 5% minimum to 15% meximum based on rate Selécied by the PERS' 3 membar

---------

Both, cily and the employees made the requ:red contributions. The cltys required:coniributions for the
years ending December 31 were as follows:

PERS Plan 1 : PERS Plan 2 . PERSPlan 3

2009 $ 35,088 $ 320,408 [ 68,994
2008 $ 33,995 $ 311,218 $ 27,872

2007 § 27,045 $ . 234851 . 26,939

Law Enforcement Officers’ And Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF) Plans { and 2

Plan Description .

LEOFF is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate
defined benefit plans. LEQFF participants who joined the system by September 20, 1977 are
Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977 are Plan 2 members.
Membership in the system includes all full-time, fully compensated, local law enforcement
officers and firefighters and, as of July 24, 2005, those emergency medical technicians who
were given the option and chose LEQOFF Plan 2 membership. i_EOFF membership is
comprised primarily of non-state employees, with the Department of Fish and Wildlife
enforcement officers; who were first included prospectweiy effective July 27, 2003 being an
exceptton .

Effective July 1, 2003, the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board was established by [nitiative 780
to provide governance of LEOFF Plan 2. The Board’s duties include adopting contribution
rates and recommending policy changes to the Legislature for the LEOFF Plan 2 retirement
plan.

LEOFF defmed henefits are financed froma comblnatlon of investment earmngs employer

-and employee contributions, and a special funding situation in which the state pays through
state legislative appropriations. LEOFF retirement benefit provisions are established in state
statute and may be amended only by the Stafe Legislature,
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LEOFF Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan
1 members are eligible for retirement with five years of service at age 50. The benefit per year
of service calculated as a percent of final average salary is as follows:

Term of Service Percent of Final Average
20 or more years 2.0%
10 but less than 20 years 1.5%
5 but tess than 10 years ) 1.6%

The final average salary is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement,
provided a member has held the same position or rank for 12 months preceding the date of
retirement. Ctherwise, it is the average of the highest consecutive 24 months’ salary within
the last 10 years of service. A cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on the Consumer
price Index}.

LEOFF Plan 2 members are vested after the compietion of five years of eligible service. Plan
2 members may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service, or at age 53 with five years of
service, with an allowance of 2 percent of the final average salary per year of service. The
final average salary is based on the highest consecutive 60 months. Plan 2 members who
retire prior to age 53 receive reduced benefits. Benefits are actuarially reduced for each year
that the bensfit commencas prior fo age 53 and to reflect the choice of a survivor option. 1If
the member has at least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is three percent for
each year prior to age 53. There is no cap on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living
allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually.

There are 374 participating employers in LEOFF. Membership in LEOFF -consisted of the
following as of the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2008:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefils 9,268

‘Terminated Plan Members Entitled To But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 650

Active Plan Members Vested 13,120

Active Plan Members Nonvested 3,927

Total 26,965
Funding Policy

Starting on July 1, 2000, LEOFF Plan 1 employers and employees contribute zero percent

as long as the plan remains fully funded. Employer and employee contribution rates are

developed by the Office of the State Actuary te fully fund the plan. LEGFF Plan 2 employers

and employees are required to pay at the level adopted by the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement

Board. All employers are required to contribute at the level required by state law. The

Legisiature by means of a special funding arrangement appropriated money from the state

General Fund fo supplement the current service Hability and fund the prior service costs of
Plan 2 in accordance with the requirements of the Pension Funding Councii and the LEOFF
Plan 2 Retirement Board. However, this special funding situation is not mandated by the

stafe constitution and this funding requirement could be returned to the employers by a.
change of statufe.
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The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current year covered payroll,
as of December 31, 2009, were:

_ LEQFF Plan 1 LEOFF P]an 2
Employer . 0.16% 5.24%*
Employes 0.00% 8.46%
Siate N/A 3.38%

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currantly set at 0.16%.
** The employer rate for ports and universities Is 8,99%.

Both city and the empioyees made the required contrlbutlons The city’s required
contributions for the years ending Pecember 31 were; _

LEOFF Plan 1 LEOFF Plan 2

2009 8 0 5 230,360
2008 '$ 30§ 213,547
2007 $ 152, $ 179,935

Other Retirement Systems - Volunteer Fire Fighters’ Relief And Pension Fund

The Volunteer Fire Fighters’ Relief and Pension Fund System is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer retirement system which was created by the Legislature in 1945 under Chapter
41.24 RCW. It provides pénsion, disability and survivor benefits. Membership in the system
requires service with a fire department of an electing municipality of Washington State except
those covered by LEQOFF. The system is funded through member contributions of $30 per
year; employer contributions of $30 per year; 40 percent of the Fire Insurance Premium Tax;
and eamings from the investment of moneys by the Washington State Investment Board.

However, members may elect to withdraw their contributions upon termination. This pension
fund is administered by the State of Washington Board for Volunteer Fire Fighters and
Reserve Officers, and the only expense to the city is our contribution. The Actuarial Valuation
is available on the Washington Office of State Actuary website. The cost for 2009 and 2008
was $360 and $480 for 2007, which represented 100% of the VFR&P cost for all three years.

Local Governments Pension Trust Funds

The City of Moses Lake is also the administrator of a pension retirement system called
Fireman's Pension Fund. The system is shown as a trust fund in the financial reports of the
city and is a single -employer deflned benef' t pension p!an

As of December 31, 2009 there were a total of eight individuals covered by the system. All
mdlwduals were retlred as of the end of the year and f ive were drawmg benefits.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The City of Moses Lake offers ifs employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457, Employees are offered a
choice of plans with Hartford Insurance, ICMA Retirement Corporation or the State of
Washington Deferred Compensation Program. The plan, available to all employees, permits
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them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensaticn is not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency.
The plan’s funds, held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries, are hot included in the presentation of the city’s financial reports.

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The city of Moses Lake is a member of the Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA).
Utilizing Chapter 48.62 REW ({self-insurance regulation} and Chapter 39.34 RCW (Interlocal
Coocperation Act), nine cities originally formed WCIA on January 1, 1981. WCIA was created for the
purpose of providing a pooling mechanism for jointly purchasing insurance, jointly self-insuring,
and/or jointly contracting for risk managemant services. WCIA has a total of 136 Members.

New members initially contract for a three-year term, and thereafier automatically renew on an
annual basis. A one-year withdrawal notice is required before membership can be terminated.
Termination does not relieve a former member from ifs unresoived loss history incurred during
membership.

Liability coverage is written on an occurrence basis, withoutdeductibles. Coverage includes general,
automobile, police, public officials’ errors or omissions, stop gap, and employee benefits liability.
Limits are $4 million per occurrence self insured layer, and $16 million per occurrence in the re-
insured sxcess layer. The excess layer is insured by the purchase of reinsurance and insurance and
is subject to aggregate limits, Total limits are $20 million per occurrence subject to aggregate
sublimits in the excess layers, The Board of Directors determines the limits and ferms of coverage
annuaily.

insurance coverage for property, automobile physical damage, fidelity, inland marine, and boiter and
machinery are purchased ona group basis. Various deductibles apply by type of coverage. Property
insurance and auto physical damage are self-funded from the members deductibie to $500,000, for
all perils other than flood and earthquake, and insured above that amount by the purchase of
reinsurance.

In-house services include risk management consultation, loss control field services, claims and
litigation administration, and loss analyses. WCIA contracts for the claims investigation consultants
for personnel issues and land use problems, insurance brokerage, and lobbyist services.

WCIA is fully funded by its members, who make annual assessments on a prospectively rated basis,
as determined by an outside, independent actuary. The assessment covers loss, loss adjustment,
and administrative expenses. As outlined in the interlocal, WCIA retains the right to additionally
assess the membership for any funding shortfall,

An investment committee, using investment brokers, produces additional revenue by investment of
WCIA’s assets in financial instruments which comply with all State guidelines. These revenues
directly offset portions of the membership’s annual assessment.

ABoard of Directors governs WCIA, which is comprised of one designated representative from each
member. The Board elects an Executive Committee and appoints a Treasurer to provide general
policy direction for the organization. The WCIA Executive Director reports fo the Executive
Commitiee and is responsible for conducting the day to day cperations of WCIA.
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The City of Moses Lake maintains insurance against most normal hazards except for unemployment
compensation where the city has elected to become self-insured. The city also has set aside monies
for possible future self-insurance for accident insurance and this self-insures the first $50,000.

Claims are processed by independent claims managers. Based on the claims manager's estimates,
the city's estimated liability for possible losses at December 31, 2009 were as follows:

Unemployment Compensation $405,753

Claims setilements and Ioss expenses are accrued in the unemployment com pensatson fund for the
estimated settlement value of both reported and unreported claims. This fund is respons;b]e for
collecting interfund premiums from insured funds and departments and for paying claim settlements.
Interfund premiums are assessed on the basis of claims experience and are reported as revenues
and expenses or expenditures.

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The City of Moses Lake issues general obhgatlon and revenue bonds to finance the purchase of land
and the acquisition or construction of reservoirs, an aquatic center, water and sewer lines and-
upgrade of wastewater treatment plants. Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into in prior

years fo advance refund several general obligation and revenue bonds.

General Obliqatién Bonds

General obllgatlon bonds have been issued for both general government and busmess—typei
activities and are being repaid from the apphcable resources.

General oblagatlon bonds currently outstandlng are as follo_ws:

Issuanea Maturily Criginal Interest A_i-nuunll
Name of isswance Purpose Data Dafe Debt Rata Qutstanding
4888 LTGO Bond Governmental Activitles - Refunding 01/06{1988 08/01/2009 $ 1,538,725 40-48% § 313..35'35
1998 LTGO Bond Governmsntal « Internal Sarvice . 01/06/1998 0810142009 165,275 4.0 - 4.83% 31,608
2002 LTGO Bond Governmental Activitles - Refunding 09/10/2002 08101}2012 - 2,315,706 1.5 -3.95% 77_‘5';268
2002 LTGO Bond angmr!tenta!-- tntarnal Sawlca 09f10/2002 0810172012 1,118,295 . 0 1.5-3.95% 374,731
2003 LTGD Bond Governmentai - Intarnal Sorvice 1213042003 0910112025 2,725,000 1.2 - 4.6% 2,100,000
2006 LTGCO Bond Governmentat Activities 06/05/2006 080172026 5,083,333 3.65-4.25% 4,575,000
200I§ LTGQ Bond Operations Complax . {d6/05/2006 98/01J2025 1,016,687 3.65-4,25% 815,000 '

Talal i § 13,955,000 § 9,084,008
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as {follows:

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
.201 0 $ 572,817 § 232,478 $ 287,182 ] 14€,697
2011 547,014 209,746 292,988 130,549 .
2012 568,831 187,968 306,168 118,687
2013 216,667 164,835 173,333 107,832
2014-2018 1,216,667 688,881 863,333 433,296
2019-2023 1,487,500 416,710 1,187,800 210,072
2024-20286 1,054,167 80,844 210,834 18,169
Tota! 3 5663.663 . §$ 1.891.562 3% 34213386 $ 1.160.402

Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds are bonds where the government pledges income derived from the acquired
or consiructed assets fo pay debt service. Revenue bonds are created by ordinance, adopted

by the City Council, and financed from Enterprise Fund revenues.

Revenue bonds currently cutstanding are as follows:

Issuance Maturity ~ Dnriginal Inierast
Bond Dale Date Debt Rata Amount
Revenue Bands '04 101132004 81172024 $ 7,015,000 2.50-5.00% § 6,950,000
Total S___7.015.000 $__6.950000

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 75,000 § 325,000 % 400,000
2011 225,000 322,563 547,563
2012 250,000 314 688 564,688
2013 275,000 305,937 580,837
2014 290,000 295,625 585,625
20152018 2,010,900 1,264,300 3,274,300
2020-2024 3,825000 672,000 4,497,000
Total $ 6,950,000 § 3,500,113 § 10,450,112

Per Internal Revenue Service Code Section 148, rebate arbifrage are earnings on investiments
purchased from gross proceeds of a bond issue that are in excess of the amount that would
have been earned if the investments were invested at a yield equal o the yield on the bond
issue. The rebate arbitrage must be paid to the federal government. The City of Moses Lake
carefully monitors it investments to restrict earnings to a vield less than the bond issue, and
therefore limit any arbitrage liability. As of December 31, 2009 the City has no arbitrage rebate

fiability.
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Government Loans

Government loans have been received to provide for construction of proprietary fund capital
projects. Government leans outstanding at year—end are as follows:

Loan _Interest Rats . Amount

PWTF Larson Potable 1.00% $ 75,851
PWTF Sewer Rehabilitat]on 3.00% 23,845
PWTF Well #14 3.00% 62,166
PWTF Reservoir #8 2.00% 457,900
PWTF WWTP-Design B50% 387,365
PWTF WWTP-Construction 50% 6,882,353
WA St. Revolve (A) 5.00% 39,612
Total : - $ 7,929,082

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for Government loans are as follows:

W . Year .. Principal o interest : Total .
P10 - 798,039 -~ - 49,835 = 847,874
2011 . 658,731 42,415 . 701,147

2012 658,731 37,459 696,180

2013 638,009 ‘ 32,502 870,511

2014 638,009 28,167 " 666,178
2015-2019 2,884 777 84,073 2,969,750
2020-2022 1,852,796 ] 16,366 _ 1,669,162

Total $ 7,928,082 © 8 291,717 . 3 8,220,810

In proprietary funds, unamortized debt issue costs are recorded as deferred charges and
bonds are displayed net of premium or discount; annual interest expense is decreased by
amortization of debt premium and increased by the amortization of debt issue costs and
discount. _

At December 31, 2009, the city had $323, 473 available in debt service funds to service the

general bonded debt. Restricted assets in proprietary funds contain $876,196 in smkmg funds
and reserves as required by bond mdentures

NOTE 10 LEASES

Operating Leases |

The Clty of Moses Lake leases a- pt}rtaon of a buiiding which the museum and art center
occupies. This lease was for 10 years béginning January 1, 2001 and terminating December
31, 2010, with an option to extend for five additional years. Total cost for this lease was
$51 600, payable in equal monthly payments of $4,300,for the year ended December31, 2009,
The future minimum lease payments for this lease are as follows:

Year

Amount

2010
Total

51,600

51,600
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Capital Leasas

The City of Moses Lake has entered into lease agreements for financing machinery and
equipment and cther improvements. An insignificant portion of these capital leases was used
to purchase items below the capitalization threshold and therefore are non-capital items.

These lease agfeements qualify'as capital leases for accounting purposes, therefore, have
been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception
date.

The assets acquired through capital ieases are as foliows:

Governmental Business-Type

Net Capital Lease Asset Activities Activities
Other Improvements 0% - $ 23,287
Machinery & Equipment 2,735,109 202,728
Less Accumulated Depreciation 892,340 19,155
Total 3 1,842,769 3 208,860

The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value of these minimum lease
payments as of December 31, 2009 were as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Year : Activities Activities

2010 $ 540,659  $ 43,517
2011 482 538 44,013
2012 332,136 : 37,266
2013 - 154,968 7,971
2014 12,914 664
Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,503,215 133,431
Less: Interest 75,263 6,910
Present Value of Minimum

Lease Payments $ 1,427,852 8 126,521
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NOTE 11 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Duririg the year ended December 31, 2009, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:
!‘ ) B T .

Beginning " Ending  DueWithin  tnternal

Govemmental activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance OneYesar Sewvice Funds
Bonds payable: ‘ ' o ‘ _ .
Genersl obligation bonds ~ § 8,357,499 § - $ 787500 $ 8169993 $ 821,667 $2,238,255
Less defetred amaunt
lssuance premiums{discour {61.547) 4,338 - {7,311 - {18.233)
Total bondsfleases payak 5,895,852 4338 7872500 . 8112688 821,667 2,220,022
Capital leages 1,279,820 722819 574,688 1,427,953 501,277 806,905
Claims and judgements - - - - -
Compensated absences 1,663,225 888,978 Bh3,970 1,563,233 8104 72.934
OPER - 738147 - 735147 - -
Governmental liahilities $11,738.897 $2,376280 $2.216,157 $11,845,021 $1,331,048 $3,198.861
Busiresstype arihilies
Bonds payable:” ” o T N
Gengral Obligation Bonds  § 9625601 § - % 37500 $ 915000 ¢ 38333
Revenye honds 6,980,000 - 30,000  5,5%0.000 75.000
Less deferrec amounts ,
Issuance premiums{discour 386,836 ¢ 468 23,689 339433 -
Total bonds/leases payat 8,318,337 . 468 91,168 B204434 . 113333
Canpital leases - 129,597 32181 40,257 126,522 39,885
Govemmentioans 8,763,868 - 834,776 7929092 798,033
Campensated absences 411,723 303,563 226,608 488,678 48,868

Business-Type liabilities $17623526 § 341,212 $1.192.810 316,748,725 $1,000,125

Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term labilities
of $3,198,861 are included as part of the above tofals for governmental activities. Also, for the
governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are general!y liguidated
by the general fund.

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES ANb LITIGATIONS

The City of Moses Lake has recorded in its. financial statements all material liabilities, including an
estimate for situations which are not yet resolved but where, based on available information,

- management believes it is probable that the city will have to make payment. [n the opinion of
management, the city's insurance policies and/for self-insurance reserves are adequate to pay all
known or pending claims.

As discussed in Notes No. 8 and 10 Long-Term Debt and Leases, the city is contingently liable for
repayment of refunded debt.

The city participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These grants are subject
to audit by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in requests for
reimbursement to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. (Other
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than the instances described above,)} city management believes that such disallowance, if any, will
be immaterial.

As of December 31, 2008, significant suits were:

Pending

1.

Moses Lake v. EPA, Beeing, and Department of Defense: The city has filed a lawsuit io
recover against the defendants for contamination of city wells. The trial has been avoided.
The city, EPA, and DOD are negotiating the city’s share of liability and the amount of any
potential recovery by the City's water utility. ‘

Safeco v. Moses Lake; This is a suit filed by the insurer in the Moses Lake v. EPA(see above)
case to chaillenge the duty of Safeco io pay for the city’s defense. This claim has been setfied

- at no cost to the city.

Of the litigation settled in the past three years, where the Cily was the defendant, none exceeded the
insurance coverage.

NOTE 13 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Balances

Loans between funds are classified as interfund loans receivable or payable on the statement
of net assets. The loans were for side walk paver construction, operaticns complex
construction, and Cenfral Drive LID. Repayment in full by December 31, 2009 is not
expected.

fnterfund balances at December 31, 2009 were as follows:

PAYABLE FROM

GENERAL BUILDING EQUIPMENT
FUKD MAINTEMANCE RENTAL Tatals
e
=
& SANITATION 1,162,844 1,250,000 443,617 2,862,481
WETERSEWER 1.060.000 1.000,800

Totals $ 11e284d § 2260000 % 449,617  § 3862451
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Interfund Transfers

. TRANFERS TO

Interfund transfers are the flow of assets without a reciprocal return of assets, goods or
services. The principle reason for the transfers is to move the resources from the fund
collecting them fo the fund using them as required by siatute or budget and to account for
operating subsidies between funds in accordance with budget authorization. The interfund
transfer activity for the year is as follows: ‘

TRANSFERS FROM
Special Detit
General Reenus Senice TOURISM Totals

Cereral  § - % - $ 30387 '$ 500000 $ 530,387
Specia 2 906,571 - - - 2208571
Revenue ‘

Debt 344,100 458,600 - - 802,700
Senice ' '

Capital 50,000 - - - 50,000
Projects

Airgort 60,574 - - - 60,574
Ambulance 73,500 - - - 73,500
Firemen's .

Pension 73,500 - - - 73,500

Totals $ 2808245 $ 458600 $ 30,387 $  B00000 § 3,797,232

70
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NOTE 14 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The city operates three utilities which are primarily financed by user charges. The only required fund
to display segment information is the water/sewer fund. Segment information for the year-end is
provided below. .

“Wator Sewer Total
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF RETASSETS
Assets:
Current aaset _ $ 4,217,215 § 2,105,391 $% 6,322,608
Restricted assels 2,122,111 2,113,301 4,235 412
Capital assets 32,295,965 36,560,411 68,855,376
Other asssts 54 612 54.512 108,225
TOTAL ASSETS 38,689,903 40,833,716 78,623,619
Lishilities:
Cutrent ishilities 142,773 103,388 246,161
Currant Liehilities payshle
from restricied assets 277,680 836,853 1,114,544
Non curtent lishilities 4974.195 10,565,471 15,539,666
TOTAL LIABILIMES 5,394,558 11,506,712 16.900,371
MNet Assets:
Invasted in capits! assets,
net of related debt 27,356,356 25,662,792 53018148
Restrictad 478,763 428,764 853,538
Unrestrictad 5,512,128 3,238,443 8,750,563
TOTAL NETASSETS % 33,295,245 § 29328004 § 62,623,249
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHAMNGES INMNETASSETS
Totel operating Revenues $ 4712823 % 3621.803 3% 8,334,728
Deprecigtion, Amortization, Depletion {922,970 {1.027.455) {1,850, 426)
Total Operating Expense {2,564, 171 (2,187,267 4,741,438
Operstitrg income 1,235,781 407,082 1,642,883
Nonoperating revenue fexpensesy;
interest income 12,187 11,835 24,032
Miscellsneous revenues/expense 433,974 135,589 558,572
Intergoemment al payments (50,000} - (50,000
interest expense (196,183) 233,353 {429,538}
Capital Contributions 1,316,229 1,747.850 3,064,119
Changein net assets 2,751,848 2,089,052 4,821,049
Beginning net assets 30,543, 247 £7.258.852 57.802.198
Ending net assets & 33,295,245 § 28,378,004 $ 52.523.249
CONDENSED STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided {used) by
Operating activities 3 2,207,998 % 1,818,470 $ 4,198,458
Moncapital financing activities 45,836 36,957 2,794
Capital & related finencing activties {1.015.790) (1,540,052 {2,555, 842}
Net increase (decressg) 1,318.045 307,375 1,625,420
Beginning cash & cash equivalents 5,814,003 668,898 6,582,501
Ending cesh & cash equivelents $ 7,132,048 % 1,176.273 % 8,308,321
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NOTE 15- OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLANS

In addition to the pension benefits described:in Note No. 7, the city provides post-retirement health
care benefits in accordance with statute for police and fire employees who are eligible under the
Police Relief and Pension Fund and Firefighter's Pension Fund. Currently the city has 19 individuals
that meet the eligibility requirements.

Law Enforcement Officers’ And Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF) plan 1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The LEOFF's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan
member coniributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are .due.
Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made. a formal
commitment o provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable, Investments are reported at fair value. The city has elected fo calculate information
of an actuarial nature using the alternative measurement method permltted for plans with
fewer than one hundred emponees ‘

Plan Descnptlon

The "plan” is directed and defined by State of Washington Revised Code {(RCW). Employers,
. sich as municipalities, counties, and fire districts, are required by RCW 41.26.150 to pay the
cosis of necessary medical services for any active or retired members of the Law Enforcement
Officers' and Fire Fighters' Retirement System Plan One (LEOFF 1). Under subsection 4, the
- amployer may provide for medical insurance through insurance carriers. The plan covers
retirees who are retired on disability as well as those who are retired after reaching age
requirements. To qualify for medical services, the employee need only be active or disability
retired, or the employee's service retirement date is that day following separation from LEOFF
employment with the city. To make this plainer, if the employee leaves the city and takes a
job with another member of the Washington State Retirement System, regard!ess of the plan,
then that member would then be liable for the employee's medical services. Employees may
retire after 5 yeéars of service after reaching age 50. Employees with 20 years of service who
. leave employment before retirement age are eligible for medical benefits upon reaching age
50. Insurance for retired individuals is provided through the employar s group plan, which
covers both active and qualified retired members. The health insurance coverage and
‘medicatl costs for retired firefighters are paid for out of the fire fighters' pension fund. Forlaw
enforcement officers, costs are paid out of the police depariment budget. The medical
services cover active and retired members only. Spouses are not eligible.

Funding Status and Funding Policy

As of March 2008 there are no active members, and currently19 retired members. Health
insurance premiums are paid monthly. Other medical services are paid bimonthly as billings
are presented for reimbursement. The city reimburses 100 percent of the amount of validated
claims for medical costs incurred by these individuals. The pension board performs an
annual survey to determine the care to be covered. Employer contributions are financed on
a pay-as-you-go basis. The city maintains a fund dedicated fo providing resources for fire
fighter benefits,
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For 2009, the city paid medical insurance premiums of $156,435 for pre-age 65, and $80,986
for post-age 65. Other medical payments paid by the city are for all eligible medical services
not paid for by the insurance.

The city's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense} is calculated based
on the annual required contribution of the employer {ARC). The City has elected to calculate
the ARC and related informaticn using the alternative measurement method permitted for
employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an on going basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the city’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actuaily confributed to the pian, and changes in the city's OPEB
obligation to the Refiree Health Plan:

Pdlice Fire Tatal

Annusl required cantribution $ 165,208 % 226,142 ¢ 381,351
Interest on net OPEB ohligation 8,093 9,959 18,062
Adiustment to annuel required contribution {11,385) {17,604} 128, 569)

Annusl OPED cost (expense} 161,937 219,508 380.444
Contributions made 111,842 131,423 243,365

Increase in net OPER obligation 48,995 87,085 137.080
Net OPEB obligation-Beginning of year 269,769 332,245 602,087
MNet OPEB obligation-End of year § 319,763 & 415,384 ¢ 735147

The city's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2009 and the two preceding fiscal years were as
follows:

Police Fund
Schedule aef Employer Contributions
Percentage
Annual of Annual
Fiscal Year Required Annual OPEB Casts OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Conttibutions Confributed Confributed Uhbligation
1243172007 $221.28¢8 107,658 49% $232.442
1243172008 165,223 127.894 71 269,768
1243172009 161,937 111,942 59% 319,763
Firemans Pension
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Percentage
Annual of Annual
Fiscal Year Required Annual OPEB Costs OPEB Cost Net GFEB
Ended Contributions Cantributad Conirtbuied Obligation
124312007 $231.965 105,538 46% $257,888
1243172008 194,176 119,756 B2% 332,293
1243172069 218,568 131,423 B0% 419,384
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Funding Status and Funding Progress. As of December, 2009, the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits was $7,196,723, which has a funded portlon of $194 387 from the Flreman
Pension Fund.

The projection of future benefit paymeénts for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and thé healthcare
cost trend. Amiounts.determined regarding the: funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule
of funding progress, presented as r'equired presents multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time rélative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. .

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the &ffects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

There are no active emp]oyees The historical age of retirement for regu]a? retirees is 55 years
of age, the city's average is 51 years of age. Employees who retired on dlsabzllty ware
excluded from this calculation. _

Life expectancies are based on mortality tables at the Office of the State Actuary for
Washington (osa.leg.wa.gov). Life expectancies that included partial years were rounded to
the nearest whole year. The calculation of post employment health insurance ¢overage for
each year in the worksheet is based on the assumption that all participants will live until their
expected ages as displayed in the mortalify tables.

The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums is based on projections of the
Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, as published in National
Health Care Expenditures Projection Tables, Table 3: National Health Expenditures, Aggregate
& Per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribution, and Average Annual Percent Change by Source
of Funds: Selected Calender Years 2003 to 2018, published March 2008 by thé Heaith Care
Fmancmg Administration (www.cms.hhs.gov).

The assumed long term earnings rate on current and expected investments that are expected
to be used in financing the payment of benefits is 3%.

Inflation rate- The expected fong-term inflation assumpfion for 2009 of -.67 percent was based
on projected changes in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage earners and Clerical
Workers (CPI-W) from the Office of the state Actuary for Washington (osa.leg.wa.gov).

. Payroll growth rate- The expected long-term payroli growth rate was assumed to equal the rate
of inflation.
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~ Based on the historical and expected returns of the city's short-term investment portfolio, a

discount rate of 3 percent was used. In addition, the actuarial cost method used to determine
the actuarial accrued liability was Projected Unit Credit. The funded actuarial accrued liability
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroff on a closed basis. The remaining
amortization period at December 31, 2009 was twenty-six years.
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Required Supplementary Information
Pension Funds -

Schedule of Funding Progress: | .
for the LEOFF 1 Retiree Healthplan

Police Fund
Actuaital Actuaiial Acerued Uasl asa
Valualion Yalue of Liability [AAL)- Hrit Unfunded Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assels Credit Cost A&l [UAAL) Ratio Pauoll Covered Payrol)
(a) (b] [b-a} [ah] fel {Ib-ajic)
124312007 . $ 3,164,408 $ 3,184.408 0% $ 55977 BER3%
124312008 - 3,871,293 3.871.293 0% 59.208 B538%
1243142008 - 2,956,033 2,956,033 0% 1 134
Firem an Fund
Actuariaf Actuarial Accned UAAL asa
Valuation Valus of Liability [AAL)- Lnit Unfunded Funded Coverad Percentage of
Date fssets Credit Cost Al [UAAL) Ralio Payrolt Covered Papioll
: {a] {b} (b-a} fab] Ig] {Ibalc]
12/312007 ¢ 172573 % 3,494,811 $ 332193 5% $ 52.432 B328%
1243122008 177519 4,780,126 4 602,507 4% 54,934 83653%
12/31./2009 194387 4,248,690 4,046,303 5% 0 0%
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE
Required Suppiementary Information

Condition Assessments and Preservation of Infrastructure Eligible for Modified Approach

Sireetls

The City has taken a proactive approach with it's maintenance practices associated with it's streets and roads.
The City performs condition assessments on'its system of strests through the City Pavement Management
System, This program generates a pavement condition rating (PCR} for each segment of primary streets,
secondary streets, tertiary collectors and residential sireets. There is a numerical index from zerc te 100 (0 -
100) that represents the pavement's functional condltion based on the quantity, severity, and type of visual
distress, such as cracking. Based on the PCR valuation, condition ratings are assigned as fellows: a PCR of
less than 20 is considered fo be in “very poor” condition; 2 PCR of greater than 20 but [ess than 40 is defined
as having a “poor'siaius; a PCR of between 40 and 60 is regarded as being in “fair” condilion; a PCR of 60
to 80 is evaluated as being in "good” status and a score from 80 to 100 is defined as being in “very good”
condition. Condition assessments are undertaken at least once every three years. The three most recent
complete condition assessments of the City's streets are shown below.

2009 2008-2006 20085-2803

Condition rating Feel % Fest % Feet %

VERY POOR 16,247 - 2.31% 24,932 4.20% 8,080 1.49%
POOR 3,360 0.67% 30,790 5.19% 20,465 3.78%
FAIR 31.465 4.48% 52,806 10.80% 78,300 1464%
GOOD 109,243 18.54% 164,458 25.03% 133,396 24.73%
VERY GOOD 542,054 7TF11% 320,411 53.80% 299 855 55.36%
TOTAL 702 989 100.00% 593,507  100.08% 541,806 100.00%

i is the Policy of the City Engineering Department to maintain 70 percent of the strests ata PCR of 40 or
higher. The table below shows the length and percentage of feet of sireets that meet the 40 target lavel.

2009 200B-2008 2005-2003
PLR score Feet Y Fest % Feet %
PCRO1o 33 20227 2.88% 65 722 539% 2B 555 55%
PCR 40 to 1C0 F82 762 o7 12% 637 785 90.61% 513,251 94.73%
Total 702 969 100.60% 593,507 100.0% 541 BOR 100.0%

The four classiffcations of streets that the City has are primary, secondary, tertiary collectors and residential.
There is a state highway which is considered a primary street that bisects the City which is maintained and
evaluated by the State of Washington, Department of Transporiation. The majority of streets that fall below
the PCR of 40 are residential streets. A portion of the streets that are under the target level of 40 is a primary
street that was recently annexed into the City. The majority of the remaining streets under the PCR 0f 40 is
a section of the city that has no sewer services at this time. Once funding is available to extend utilities to the
particular area it is the city’s plan to consfruct paved streeis and maintain them at a level consisient with the
remainder of the city.

Below s information on budgeted and actual expenditures incurred to maintain and preserve the street system
at or above the minimum acceptable condition level from 2004 to 2003,

Amounts in Thousands

2008 2068 2007 2008 2005 2004
Budgetad 700 1.400 1295 975 1378 433
Expended 778 236 652 2% 1,086 194
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The budgeted amount is equivalent to the anticipated amouni needed to maintain streets up to the
recommended condition level. Underspending of budgeted amounts ccours when sirests projecis are
removed from the waork schedule due to conflicts with other major construction work; lowering of priority due
to cost considerations breught on by excesslive blds over estlmaies or shartages of suffl clent contractor bids
and through direction from Counci,

Bridge

The City currently maintains one simple structure bridge. Physmal |nspectlons o delermine the surface and
underneath condition of the bridge and the degree of wear and deterloration are carried out every two years
by Gity staff. Underwater inspections are contracted by the State Department of Transpartation once every
five years. Inspections reveal deficiencies in the bridge such as steel corrosion, damaged piltars, cracked
concrete, deteriorated bridge decks and erosion. These are documenied in an tnspectlon report provided by
the State Department of Transportation along with recommended repalrs and needed services. '

A key element in determining the condition of the bridge Is the sufficiency rating (SR), the numerical value
which indicates a bridge’s relative ability to serve its intended purpose, measure considered by state and
federal governments as the basis for establishing efigibility and priority for the bridge replacement and
rehabilitation. The numerical rating is based on the summation of four calculated values: structural adequacy
and safety, serviceability and functional chsolescence, essentiality for public use, and special reductions. The
value ranges from 100 (newly constructed bridge} to 0 (bridge incapable of carrylng traffic).

[n general, the lower the sufficiency rating, the higher the priority. To qualify for replacement, a Brldge must
have a sufficiency rating of less than 50 and be structurally deficient or functicnaily ohsolete. To be eligible
for rehabllitation, a bridge musthave a SR of 80 or less and be sfructurally deficient or functionally cbsolete.
A structurally deficient bridge Is defined as one whole condition or design has impacted its ability fo adequately
carry intended traffic loads. A functionally obsolete bridge is one in whish the deck geometry, load carrying
capacity, clearance, of approach roadway alignment has reduced its abilily to adequately meet the traffic
needs below accepted design standards.

Below are the fwo most recent éufﬁciency ratings of the Alder St. causeway.

sufficlency rating

2001 70 %
2006 69 %

1t is the policy of ithe City to maintain bridges is such a manner that the sufficlency rating is 20 or hlgher A
rating of 20 or less is usually indicative of a bridge with structural deficiency. The most common remedy is full
replacement or rehabilitation of the bridge. As of December 31, 2006 the Cily's lone bridge was given a ‘good’
evaluation. With annual surface inspections and maintenance, as well as minimal water flow under the bridge
it Is anticipated that the bridge will confinue to have a faverable evaluation well info the future. With little
change in the last two ratings the results of the City's efforts to maintain the bridge in above standard condition
are evident.

Bscause the City's bridge is relatively small {146 feet long) the budget and actual expende_d. ani'ounts to
maintain and preserve the bridge are included in the budget and expended amounts for streets. Historically
there has been no identifiable budget or expenditure for the maintenance of the lone brldge.-

Budget amounts are the anticlpated amount needed to maintain and preserve the bridge up to the required
condition level. The traffic, ‘weight loads, aging and weather extremes all have an sffect on the condition and
maintenance level of the bridge.
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MCAG NO, 0318 CITY OF MOSES LAKE

Schedule 18
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ending December 31, 2609
1 2 3 4 5
Grantor/ Expenditures Foot-
Pass-threugh Grantor Federal CFDA| Cther Identification From From: Total note
Pregram Title Number Number Pass-Through | Direct Awards Ref,
Awards
t.8. Dept. of Justice Direct Programs:
Bureau of Justice Assistance
Bulletproaf Vest Parlnarship FY 2006 16,607 N/A 3,004 Note 2
ANRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Programy/Desk 16,738  2008-58-Bp-0181] 7.847 Note 2
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Asistance / Anti-Graffifi Abalemen 16.738  20089-DJ-BX-1381 12,125 Note 2
Totai US Dept of Justice Direct Programs 23,085
U.S. Dept of Justice Indirect Programs from Grant County, WA:
Public Safety Partnership & Communily Policing 18.710 S0COCKWXD392 2,357 Note 2
ARRA-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance / INET Officer 16.803 N/A 19,682 Mote 2
Yotal US Dept of Justice Indirect Programs 22,039
U$ Department of Transporiation Indirect Program from Washingien State:
Departiment of Transportation
ARRA-Highway Planning and Construction 20205  ARRA-5081{001) 1.182,091 Note 2
Total US Depariment of Transportation indirect Pregrams from WSBOT 1,182,891
US Department of Transpartaticn indirect Program from Washingion State:
Traffic Safety Commission
State and Community Highway Safety (X52 Patrols) 20.600 N/A 714 Note 2
State and Community Highway Safety (GB Task Force) 20.800 115T-24 1,578 Nete 2
Alcchol Traffic Safety & Drunk Diiving Prevention 20.601 N/A 3,024 Note 2
Qccupant Profection 20.602 K302-01 3,687 Note 2
Total US Department of Transportation Indirect Programs from WTSC 8,903
UJS Department of Transporiation Indirect Program from Washington State:
Association of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs
State and Cemmunity Highway Safety 20,600 NA 3,500 Note 2
Total Dept. of Transportation indirect Programs from WASPC 3,800
National Endowment for the Humanities Ingdirect Program from Washington
Commissien for the Humanrities
Promotion of the Humanities - FederalfState Partnership 45129 N/A 2401 MNofe 2
Promotjon of the Humanities_Public Programs 45,1684 NIA 1,000 Note 2
Total National Endowment for the Humanities Indirect Programs 3,401
U.S. Depl of Homeland Security.
Federal Emergency Management Administration
Staffing Adeguate Fire & Emergency Response (SATER) 87.083 EMW-2005-FF.00402 24,00C Note 2
Total US Department of Homeland Security Direct Programs 24,000
Washington State Patral Confract with Grant County Emergency Management
t ocal Enforcement Tefrorism Prevention Program (FY20C7) 97.074 COB0B42FED 8,020 Note 2
Homeland Security Grant Program . 97.067  2008-GE-T8-(038 566 Note 2
Tetal US Department of Hometand Security indirect Programs 8,566
ARDS EXPENDED
1228520 47,065 1.975.585
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CITY OF MOSES LAKE
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1- BASIS QF ACCOUNTING

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the city's financial
statements. The city uses the modified accrual basis of accounting for
governmental funds,

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only federal grant
portion of the program costs. Entire program costs, mcluchng the city's portion, -
may be more than shown.
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. ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE

" The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is_-part"of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms. . - 2 '

- Our mission is to work in cooperation with our audit clients and citizens as an advocate for
government accountability. - As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence
necessary to.objectively perform audits and investigations. Our audits.are designed to comply with
- professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and locai laws.

The State Auditors Office employees are located around the state to deliver our services effecfcivély
and efficiently. N A

Our audits look at financial information-and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the -

part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agendies, including institutions of

_ higher education. .In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments and fraud, whistleblower and citizen hotiine investigations. o

The results of our work-are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our Web site and through our free, electronic subscription” service. We continue to refine our -
reporting efforts to ensure the results of our audits are useful and unders_tandablé. : :

We take our role as 43artner§ in accountability _seriostIy. We provide training and technical

assistance to governments and have an extensive quality assurance program. :

State Auditor” o | - Brian Sonntag, CGFM

Chief of Staff - T e , Ted Rutt
- Deputy Chief of Staff : _ oo : - Doug Cochran
Chief Policy Advisor o i ' Jerry Pugnetti
Director of Audit . . - Chuck Pfeil, CPA -
Director of Special Investigations ‘ - 3im Brittain, CPA
Director for Legal Affairs ' . Jan Jutte, CPA, CGFM
'Director of Quality Assurance _ ) Ivan Dansereau
-Local Government Liaison - o ’ : ‘Mike Murphy
. Communications Director o L Mindy Chambers
Public Records Officer . S Mary Leider
Main.number o . ‘ , (360) 902-0370
Toll-free Citizen Hotline - - - : (866) 902-3900
Web Site o WWW.S3a0.Wa.qov

_ . Subscription Service ‘ https://www.sao.wa.gov/EN/News/Subscriptions/
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